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          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to the Land Use Subcommittee on Landmarks,

          4  Public Siting and Maritime Uses.  I'm Jessica

          5  Lappin, the Chair.  We are joined by Council Member

          6  Rosie Mendez of Manhattan, Council Member Charles

          7  Barron of Brooklyn, Council Member Maria del Carmen

          8  Arroyo of the Bronx, Council Member Dan Garodnick of

          9  Manhattan, Council Member Annabel Palma of the

         10  Bronx, Council Member Miguel Martinez of Manhattan

         11  and Council Member John Liu of Queens.

         12                 Any other members of the Committee

         13  that I'm missing who are here in the Chambers?

         14  Okay.

         15                 We have a number of items on the

         16  agenda today, and then a hearing on a bill that's

         17  being offered by Council Member Mendez.  So let's

         18  get to it.  The first hearing will be on two items

         19  that are in Council Member Garodnick's district, the

         20  Henry Seligman Residence and the Frederick C. And

         21  Birdsall Otis Edey Residence.

         22                 Is Landmarks here?  They are items

         23  number 582 and 583.

         24                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning, Council

         25  Members.  My name is Diane Jackier, Director of
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          2  External Affairs at the Landmarks Preservation

          3  Commission.  I'm here today to testify on the

          4  Commission's designation of the Frederick and

          5  Birdsall Edey Residence located at 10 West 56th

          6  Street in Manhattan.

          7                 On March 13th, 2007, the Landmarks

          8  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

          9  designation.  Ten people testified in favor,

         10  including New York City Council Member Daniel

         11  Garodnick, representatives of Manhattan Borough

         12  President Scott Stringer, New York State Assemblyman

         13  Richard Gottfried, Manhattan Community Board 5, the

         14  Historic Districts Council, the New York Landmarks

         15  Conservancy, the Metropolitan Chapter of the

         16  Victorian Society in America the West 54- 55th

         17  Street Block Association, as well several area

         18  residents.  There were no speakers in opposition.

         19  The owner submitted a statement in support of

         20  designation with the stipulation that the company be

         21  allowed flexibility in changing the front display

         22  windows.  The Commission also received letters from

         23  New York State Senator Liz Krueger and 21 members of

         24  the West 54 55th Street Block Association in support

         25  of designation.
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          2                 On July 24th, 2007, the Commission

          3  designated the Edey Residence a New York City

          4  Landmark.  This elegant neo-French Renaissance

          5  Revival Style building is one of the few surviving

          6  townhouses designed by Warren and Wetmore, one of

          7  the designers of Grand Central Station.  The first

          8  floor retains its rusticated piers at either side

          9  and a modillioned cornice frames a grand sculptural

         10  Palladian window at the top.  The building also

         11  retains its copper mansard roof.

         12                 By the turn of the 20th century, the

         13  area now known as Midtown Manhattan became home to

         14  many of the City's affluent citizens, and West 56th

         15  Street between Fifth and Sixth Avenues became known

         16  as Bankers Row.  In 1899, prominent financier

         17  Frederick Edey purchased the lot at 10 West 56th

         18  Street.  Mr. Edey and his wife Birdsall, a leader in

         19  the Women's Suffrage Movement and a National

         20  President of the Girl Scouts of America lived in the

         21  house until 1919.  The building was then converted

         22  to commercial use and has served as a space for a

         23  dressmaker and a furniture gallery.  It currently

         24  serves as an exhibition space for the fashion house

         25  Felissimo.
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          2                 The Commissioner urges you to affirm

          3  the designation.

          4                 Do you want me to read the next one?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Well let's do

          6  this, since there are a couple of other speakers

          7  signed up to testify, we'll just do the public

          8  hearing on this item and then the public hearing on

          9  the next item.

         10                 MS. JACKIER: Okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Do any of my

         12  colleagues have questions for Ms. Jackier?  Thank

         13  you.

         14                 Joyce Matz and Veronika Conant.

         15                 I apologize that the room is not set

         16  up, but we were trying to get off on time today, and

         17  we had a stated meeting at the last minute.  Hold on

         18  one moment.  We're just going to microphone, and if

         19  you could introduce yourself please for the record.

         20                 MS. MATZ: Okay.  Thank you so much

         21  for the opportunity to come and speak to you today

         22  about these wonderful historic buildings.  Between

         23  Fifth Avenue and Sixth Avenue  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Could you just

         25  state your name for the record please?
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          2                 MS. MATZ: Pardon me.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Can you state

          4  your name for the record please?

          5                 MS. MATZ: Oh, Joyce Matz from

          6  Community Board 5.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          8                 MS. MATZ: Between Fifth and Sixth

          9  Avenue, between 53rd and 56th Street was once called

         10  the Preservation District, so although it didn't

         11  pertain to preservation, really it pertained to

         12  zoning, those buildings have remained, many of them,

         13  in tact as have these two.  The buildings in that

         14  area are extraordinary, and hopefully we'll be able

         15  to save some more of them.

         16                 Ten West was supposed to have been

         17  built by McKim, Mead and White, but there was a

         18  commitment that you could not, at that time, build

         19  to the lot line.  When finally that was removed,

         20  they hired Warren and Wetmore, another great

         21  architectural firm. That was when the covenant

         22  ended.  It's an elegant Beaux-Arts building with a

         23  mammoth grand sculptured second-story palladium

         24  window capped by an elegant design, keystone at the

         25  center piece of the design.
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          2                 We don't have any pictures I guess,

          3  but  --  Oh, you do have.  Great because in person

          4  these buildings are extraordinary.

          5                 The first floor of the townhouse was

          6  designed in the Modern French mode and retains its

          7  rusticated piers at either side which serves the

          8  base for this slender building.  It's an original

          9  Beaux- Arts design, very well preserved.

         10                 Community Board 5 voted unanimously

         11  to approve this building for designation.

         12                 Do you want me to do  --  That was 10

         13  West.  Do you want me to do 30 West also while I'm

         14  sitting up here, or do you want to wait?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Tell you what.

         16  If you don't mind just sitting there, we'll hear

         17  testimony on this item, close the hearing and then

         18  open the hearing on the next item.

         19                 MS. MATZ: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Sure.

         21                 MS. CONANT: I didn't realize they

         22  would be separate.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: That's okay.

         24                 MS. CONANT: Mine is very brief

         25  actually.

                                                            10

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: When we listen to

          3  you, we'll understand that it's for both.

          4                 MS. CONANT: Okay.  So Chair Lappin

          5  and the rest of the City Council's Landmark

          6  Committee, my name is Veronica Conant. I am

          7  President of the West 54- 55th Street Block

          8  Association in the Preservation Subdistrict of the

          9  Special Midtown District, North of the Museum of

         10  Modern Art on the West 54th, 55th and 56th Street

         11  between Fifth and Sixth Avenue.  So that's our

         12  location.  I would like to thank you on behalf of

         13  the Association for holding this hearing about

         14  Landmark designation for the two townhouses at 10

         15  and 30 West 56th Street located in the Preservation

         16  Subdistrict.  I am here is support of the

         17  designation.

         18                 We are delighted that these two

         19  magnificent Beaux Arts townhouses are considered for

         20  a long deserved landmark designation.  They were

         21  built in the early 1900's by major architects.

         22  Thirty West 56th Street is the grandest limestone

         23  mansion on the entire block, built in 1899 to 1901

         24  by C.P.H. Gibert for the Seligman family.  Ten West

         25  56th Street was built in 1901 by Warren and Wetmore
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          2  for the Edey family has an imposing palladium window

          3  as Joyce Matz also noted.

          4                 In 1970, these two buildings were

          5  among 33 buildings identified as architecturally

          6  significant and worthy of landmark designation by

          7  the Landmarks Preservation Commission's internal

          8  Midtown West survey.  These 33 buildings were on

          9  three blocks on West 54th, 55th and 56th Street in

         10  between Fifth and Sixth Avenues. These mid- blocks

         11  are still remarkably intact.  They are low- scale,

         12  filled with unique townhouse and apartment

         13  buildings, small businesses, restaurants, hotels and

         14  actually in 1982, they were recommended to be

         15  designated an historic district to the Landmarks

         16  Preservation Commission by the Department of City

         17  Planning. Unfortunately for us, it didn't happen.

         18  So these blocks are the last remnant of what Midtown

         19  used to look like.  We believe this is really

         20  important because this is how Midtown used to look

         21  like. They are very alive, a mixed

         22  residential/commercial neighborhood really worthy of

         23  preservation.

         24                 In 2005, the Block Association

         25  applied for historic designation to the Landmark
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          2  Preservation Commission, and we also requested, for

          3  each individual building, landmark designation.  We

          4  had research and documentation done by two graduate

          5  students under the supervision of Professor Andrew

          6  Dolkart at the School of Architecture and

          7  Preservation at Columbia University, and they

          8  documented every single building.  We have 11

          9  designated landmarks so far.

         10                 The LPC selected and designated out

         11  of all those which we submitted to them 10 and 30

         12  West 56th Street.  We thank the Community Board 5

         13  Landmarks Committee and the full Board for their

         14  resolution and our public officials and other

         15  preservationists who might be here for their

         16  support.  Special thanks to Council Member Garodnick

         17  and Joyce Matz at Community Board 5.

         18                 We urge you to please vote for

         19  landmark designation for both these buildings,

         20  protecting and preserving them.

         21                 Unfortunately, across the street from

         22  them on West 56th Street last year, we lost to a

         23  real estate developer four really special townhouses

         24  by well known architects.  One of them by C.P.H.

         25  Gilbert, another by John Duncan.  We are still
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          2  mourning their loss, and I'm going to give testimony

          3  on behalf of Intro  -- whatever the number is  --

          4  which is coming up because those apply to that

          5  particular bill that you are bringing up.  So we are

          6  trying to prevent the loss of other buildings which

          7  are worthy of preservation, and we intend to go

          8  before the LPC and hopefully before you again, for

          9  landmark designation to press for these. Thank you

         10  very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         12  much.  Thank you.

         13                 I want to give Council Member

         14  Garodnick the opportunity to speak to these items

         15  for a moment.

         16                 G: Thank you, Madam Chair.  I want to

         17  first of all thank Joyce Matz of Community Board 5

         18  and Veronica Conant of the West 54- 55 Street

         19  Tenants Association for their advocacy on this and

         20  other issues in our neighborhood.

         21                 I represent a portion of the West

         22  50's here on the Council, and indeed the portion

         23  that includes 10 and 30 West 56th Street.  As you

         24  heard, these buildings are important for both

         25  historical and architectural reasons.  The
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          2  designation has enormous support in the community,

          3  unanimously through the Community Board, but perhaps

          4  most importantly what I just wanted to note here,

          5  without getting into the specific details about

          6  these two applications which I support, is that this

          7  is part of a low- rise residential neighborhood and

          8  Preservation Subdistrict, which today still has a

          9  number of original historical townhouses.  It's also

         10  a neighborhood which as we have seen is under a

         11  constant threat of pursuit of these buildings, and

         12  there is strong support in our area for action to

         13  preserve its unique character.

         14                 As Ms. Conant mentioned, last year we

         15  lost 31, 33, 35 and 37 West 56th Street which was

         16  very unfortunate particularly because all of these

         17  items are part of this Special Midtown Preservation

         18  Subdistrict which was created in 1982 to "preserve

         19  the mid- block area north of the Museum of Modern

         20  Art from 54th to 57th Street for its special

         21  contribution to the historic continuity, function

         22  and ambience of Midtown".

         23                 I believe that these two buildings

         24  that are under consideration today, 10 and 30 West

         25  56th, are a very important link to the City's
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          2  architectural and cultural past.  I thank the

          3  Landmarks Commission for their action already.

          4  These buildings are spectacular buildings and are

          5  very important in our community.  I'm glad to be

          6  here today as a guest of the Landmarks Subcommittee,

          7  and I thank you for the opportunity.  I hope my

          8  colleagues will join me in supporting the

          9  designation of these buildings.  Thank you, Madam

         10  Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you Council

         12  Member Garodnick.  With that, we close the hearing

         13  on 10 West 56th Street, which is item No. 582, and

         14  open the hearing on item No. 583.

         15                 I want to note we've been joined by

         16  Council Member Leroy Comrie from Queens.

         17                 Ms. Jackier.

         18                 MS. JACKIER: Is that 30 West?  I'm

         19  sorry.  I just don't know the numbers.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Correct, 30.

         21                 MS. JACKIER: Okay.  Great.  So I'm

         22  here, Diane Jackier, to testify on 30 West 56th

         23  Street in Manhattan.

         24                 On March 13th 2007, the Landmarks

         25  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed
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          2  designation.  The hearing was continued on April

          3  10th, 2007.  Nineteen people testified in favor,

          4  including New York City Council Member Daniel

          5  Garodnick, representatives of Manhattan Borough

          6  President Scott Stringer, New York State Assemblyman

          7  Richard Gottfried, Manhattan Community Board 5, the

          8  Historic Districts Council, the New York Landmarks

          9  Conservancy, the Metropolitan Chapter of the

         10  Victorian Society in America, the West 54- 55 Block

         11  Association, as well as several area residents.  A

         12  representative of the owner testified that she was

         13  neither for nor against designation.  At both

         14  hearings, there were no speakers in opposition.

         15                 The Commission also received letters

         16  from New York State Senator Liz Krueger and 21

         17  members of the West 54- 55 Street Block Association

         18  in support of designation.

         19                 On July 24th, 2007, the Commission

         20  designated the Henry Seligman Residence a New York

         21  City Landmark.

         22                 Designed by C.P.H. Gilbert for

         23  prominent investment banker Henry Seligman and his

         24  wife Adelaide, 30 West 56th Street stands as a

         25  particularly grand and well preserved example of the
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          2  fashionable townhouses that once lined the

          3  sidestreets off Fifth Avenue.  Constructed between

          4  1899 and 1901, the residence was one of several

          5  townhouses on the West 56th Street block built for

          6  bankers at the turn of the 20th century when the

          7  street became known as Bankers Row.  Gilbert who

          8  also designed Seligman's summer house in Alburon,

          9  New Jersey had received many commissions from New

         10  York's leading families at that time and was

         11  familiar with designing townhouses in a variety of

         12  architectural styles.  For 30 West 56th Street,

         13  Gilbert employed the restrained neo-French

         14  Renaissance style on a limestone facade spanning two

         15  lots that gave the townhouse an imposing presence on

         16  a street where narrower buildings prevailed.  Above

         17  the rusticated ground floor are original second-

         18  story wood windows and an intricately carved stone

         19  balcony supported by brackets.  A mansard roof with

         20  elaborate segmental arched dormers project over the

         21  roof lines of the adjoining buildings.

         22                 Henry Seligman was a senior partner

         23  in the prestigious investment banking firm of J&W

         24  Seligman and Company, founded in 1864 by his uncles

         25  and his father Jesse.  Seligman was also influential
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          2  in financing railroad construction in the American

          3  West as well as serving as a director for several

          4  major industrial and artistic organizations across

          5  the United States.  He and his wife resided at 30

          6  West 56th Street until their deaths in 1930 and 1934

          7  respectively.  Although it remained in use as a

          8  single- family residence somewhat longer than other

          9  houses on the block, 30 West 56th Street was

         10  converted into apartments in 1941.  The building now

         11  houses offices and showrooms for a company in the

         12  fashion industry.

         13                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         14  the designation.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.  I

         16  will not for the record that Veronica Conant is in

         17  support.  Ms. Matz, would you like to say something

         18  in support of this item as well?

         19                 MS. MATZ: I'm having trouble hearing

         20  you.  Yes, I'd love to.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Please.  If you

         22  could just introduce yourself again.

         23                 MS. MATZ: The sound that comes

         24  through here is more difficult.  One thing I would

         25  like to note that Councilman Garodnick has been very
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          2  supportive of the Board's efforts to designate

          3  important buildings.  We really appreciate that

          4  help. Thirty West is unusual because it's a double

          5  lot, and I'm not sure if this was spoken to or not,

          6  but the other buildings on the block were single

          7  lots.  Because 30 was a double lot, it made it even

          8  more important, more elegant, more wonderful to save

          9  since we don't have too many buildings like that.

         10  So it's an extremely important building.

         11                 You heard all about the Seligman's,

         12  the design of the building, and Gilbert who was the

         13  architect was one of the foremost architects in that

         14  day designing really elegant, beautiful buildings.

         15  This is an extremely important building.

         16                 As Councilman Garodnick mentioned,

         17  we've already lost I think it was four buildings on

         18  that block.  We are in danger of losing more in this

         19  subdistrict which is so elegant and has so many

         20  wonderful buildings.  So I hope that we can

         21  eventually come back to you with some of those

         22  because they're really wonderful.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         24  much, Ms. Matz. With that, we will close the hearing

         25  on item number 583, and move to an item in Council
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          2  Member Martinez' district, the Highbridge Play

          3  Center, which is item number 597.  Ms. Jackier.

          4                 MS. JACKIER: Thank you.  On January

          5  30th, 2007, the Landmarks Commission held a public

          6  hearing on the proposed designation of the

          7  Highbridge Play Center in Manhattan.  Twelve people

          8  spoke in favor, including Parks Commissioner Adrian

          9  Benepe and representatives from the offices of

         10  Manhattan Borough President Scott Stringer, the

         11  Municipal Art Society, the Historic Districts

         12  Council, the Society for the Architecture of the

         13  City, and the New York Landmarks Conservancy.

         14  Several of the speakers also expressed support for

         15  the larger designation effort of all the WPA- era

         16  pools. The site was previously heard on April 3rd,

         17  1990 and September 11th, 1990.  On August 14th,

         18  2007, the Commission designated the Highbridge Play

         19  Center a New York City landmark.

         20                 The Play Center is one of a group of

         21  11 immense outdoor swimming pools opened in the

         22  summer of 1936 in a series of grand ceremonies

         23  presided over by Mayor Fiorello LaGuardia and Parks

         24  Commissioner Robert Moses.  All of the WPA pools

         25  were constructed largely with funding provided by

                                                            21

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  the Works Progress Administration, one of the many

          3  New Deal agencies created in the 1930's to address

          4  the Great Depression.  Designed to accommodate a

          5  total of 59,000 users simultaneously at locations

          6  scattered throughout New York City's five boroughs,

          7  the new pool complexes quickly gained recognition as

          8  being among the most remarkable public facilities

          9  constructed in the country.  The pools were

         10  completed just two and a half years after the

         11  LaGuardia Administration took office and all but one

         12  survived relatively intact today.

         13                 The Highbridge Play Center

         14  incorporates a portion of the elevated site in

         15  Highbridge Park.  This area was formerly occupies by

         16  a reservoir constructed in 1870 as part of New York

         17  City's Croton Water Supply system.  A short distance

         18  west of the bleacher section of the pool complex

         19  stands a related component, the tall ashlar water

         20  tower built in 1872.  Designated a New York City

         21  Landmark in 1967, the water tower dominates both the

         22  distant and immediate landscape and by virtue of its

         23  relationship to the play center's pools evokes the

         24  historic configuration of the tower with the

         25  reservoir.  The unique arrangement of the highbridge
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          2  pools, and exceptionally large wading pool and an

          3  adjacent single combined swimming and diving pool,

          4  may well have been determined in part by the earlier

          5  history of the site.  The distant views of the

          6  Hudson River Valley area from the pool complex and

          7  adjacent areas are among the most striking vistas in

          8  New York City.  Together with the other WPA- era

          9  park improvements, the Highbridge Play Center

         10  complex was clearly a major achievement of the New

         11  Deal in New York City.

         12                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         13  the designation.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We have been

         15  going through, it seems one by one, these WPA- era

         16  pools, and I've had discussion on the Committee

         17  about some of the other pools.

         18                 I wanted to ask Council Member

         19  Martinez if he'd like to say something.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes.  Thank

         21  you, Madam Chair.  We, the community and the

         22  Community Board, are absolutely in support of

         23  designating the Highbridge Center, which is one of

         24  the main sites in northern Manhattan in terms of

         25  recreation both during the winter time and summer
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          2  time since it allows indoor recreation as well as

          3  outdoor recreation.  It is one of our jewels in

          4  northern Manhattan, and, again, in northern

          5  Manhattan we have the privilege of having many park

          6  lands and a park that was constructed by Robert

          7  Moses.  Highbridge is one of the areas that we

          8  continue to invest capital to improve, and now with

          9  the designation of landmark it will become one of

         10  the attractions in northern Manhattan for others to

         11  visit.  So we support the designation of Highbridge

         12  Recreational Center one hundred percent.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you Council

         14  Member.  I wanted to ask the Parks Department, John

         15  Krawchuk, to testify.

         16                 MR. KRAWCHUK: Good morning members of

         17  the Council. My name is John Krawchuk.  I'm the

         18  Director of Historic Preservation for the New York

         19  City Parks Department, and I'm very pleased to be

         20  here today to speak on behalf of Commissioner Benepe

         21  on the Parks Department to affirm our support of the

         22  designation of the Highbridge Play Center.

         23                 Similar to the other pools where

         24  we've appeared to speak on behalf of them, since the

         25  architectural components have already been
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          2  described, I'd like to just explain to you past

          3  capital improvements and other improvements that we

          4  intend to make just so you have some context as to

          5  what the Parks Department has been doing even prior

          6  to designation in order to really acknowledge the

          7  historic importance of the Highbridge Play Center

          8  and Pool.

          9                 In the 1980's the pools were

         10  renovated after years of neglect, and that really

         11  got them up and operational, but once again in the

         12  early 1990's the pools were threatened with being

         13  closed because, again, they had sort of fallen into

         14  disrepair and there wasn't the maintenance budget to

         15  keep them going.  At that time, a gift was given to

         16  the City of New York, and the Highbridge Pool

         17  actually received new filtration equipment as well

         18  as heating and ventilation equipment which really

         19  was an important upgrade just to keep the pool

         20  operational.

         21                 The most recent improvements that

         22  have been done at the pool have been at the front in

         23  order to improve the paving which is really quite

         24  historic with a beautiful banding pattern that

         25  compliments the facade of the building.
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          2                 So we continue to advocate on behalf

          3  of the Highbridge Pool.  There is the larger context

          4  of the park itself, and you may have heard about the

          5  PlaNYC program which will actually reopen the

          6  Highbridge.  So that will create an important link

          7  between the Bronx and Manhattan so that park users

          8  and pool users can now cross over from that

          9  neighborhood very easily over to the pool and take

         10  advantage of this incredible resource.

         11                 So we're very happy to, again, be

         12  here to advocate on behalf of the pool.  We support

         13  its designation, and if you have any questions, I'm

         14  happy to answer them now.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Any questions

         16  from my colleagues?  Great.  Council Member

         17  Martinez.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I just

         19  wanted to add that the Council also made a great

         20  contribution to the Highbridge Capital Improvement

         21  by designating I believe it was more than half a

         22  million dollars for the basketball court and indoor

         23  recreational center.  So in early 2000 with the new

         24  City Council a large investment was made also so

         25  this designation will actually make it a more
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          2  attractive area.  So you forgot the early 2000  --

          3                 MR. KRAWCHUK: I apologize.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Under your

          5  leadership.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes.  So

          7  just for the record.

          8                 MR. KRAWCHUK: And we're also hopeful

          9  that the murals --  I forgot to mention those as

         10  well  --  that have missing for many years.  WPA

         11  murals that were actually painted in the lobby

         12  entrance are hopefully behind layers of paint, and

         13  so in the future we would love to obtain some

         14  funding to really investigate that and possibly

         15  bring those back.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: That would be

         17  fantastic. Council Member Barron.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I always like

         19  to educate people and be educated because when I

         20  hear names I just like more information.  I heard

         21  the name Robert Moses, and I read a book  -- well

         22  not the whole thing.  It's kind of thick  --  The

         23  Power Broker, and he was kind of a racist guy  --

         24  wasn't he?  -- Architecturally separating the City,

         25  displacing a lot of ethnic communities.
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          2                 MR. KRAWCHUK: Yes.  The Landmarks

          3  Commission designation report actually addresses the

          4  social history of the pools, and I believe this

          5  particular portion.  Moses' record on discrimination

          6  and segregation is written about in two or three

          7  paragraphs.  It certainly exists within the current

          8  designation report for the Highbridge Pool, and it

          9  sort of discusses the description, the portion of

         10  Robert Moses' record on discrimination. Reportedly

         11  the pools were kept at a certain temperature.

         12  Although we haven't found the actual primary source

         13  evidence of that, clearly Robert Caro (phonetic) had

         14  put it in his book, and I know the Commission

         15  continues to look it to that further.

         16                 This currently, because of the Moses'

         17  shows that were recently exhibited around the City

         18   --  The pools were actually featured at the Queens

         19  Museum of Art.  There were actually papers that were

         20  published and given on this very topic, and really

         21  trying to get to the bottom of exactly what was

         22  happening in New York City at that time.  Clearly

         23  segregation laws federally as well as locally still

         24  existed in housing and unfortunately that filtered

         25  down even to the use of the pools probably in some
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          2  capacity although it's still being researched.

          3                 I think Marybeth  --  that's who is

          4  the historian at the Landmarks Commission  --  has

          5  really been working closely with these scholars and

          6  we hope that in the future when more papers are

          7  published that the real record can be confirmed and

          8  that we can really know exactly what happened during

          9  that period.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Madam Chair, I

         11  think it's very important when these names are

         12  raised up that it's mentioned in the history of

         13  Robert Moses and his racism or discrimination, it

         14  gets mentioned orally as well as in the written

         15  documents when we're making the presentations

         16  because I think it's good education for the City.

         17                 MR. KRAWCHUK: Sure.  Absolutely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

         19  much, Madam Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.  The

         21  hearing on this item is closed.

         22                 MR. KRAWCHUK: Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: The next two

         24  items  --  We going to have hearing first on 589 and

         25  then 590.  They are both in the Speaker's district.
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          2  The first item 589 is 488 Greenwich Street, and I

          3  would note that the Speaker has sent a note that she

          4  wanted me to read into the record.  I'm proud to

          5  support the proposed landmarking of two federal-

          6  style rowhouses at 488 and 486 Greenwich Street.

          7  They are two of the eldest buildings in Manhattan

          8  originating in the early 1800's and are a

          9  significant part of our community's history as well

         10  as that of New York City.  They're also part of a

         11  larger effort to designate 13 federal- era rowhouses

         12  in Lower Manhattan that I have worked on along with

         13  other elected officials and local preservation

         14  groups since 2003.  So that's from the Speaker.  Ms.

         15  Jackier.

         16                 MS. JACKIER: Thank you.  I'm actually

         17  wrote the testimony for both 486 and 488 Greenwich

         18  Street if that's okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: That's fine.

         20                 MS. JACKIER: On April 10th, 2007, the

         21  Landmarks Preservation Commission held a public

         22  hearing on the proposed designations of 486 and 488

         23  Greenwich Street in Manhattan.  Six people spoke in

         24  favor of designating both of these buildings

         25  including representatives of State Senator Thomas K.
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          2  Duane, Assemblymember Deborah Glick, the Greenwich

          3  Village Society for Historic Preservation, the

          4  Historic Districts Council and Manhattan Community

          5  Board 2.  Neither owner took a position on

          6  designation.

          7                 In addition, the Commission received

          8  several communications from area residents in

          9  support of designation.

         10                 On July 24th, 2007, the Commission

         11  voted to designate both of these buildings New York

         12  City landmarks.

         13                 These modest rowhouses were

         14  constructed circa 1823 in the federal style

         15  characterized by their two and a half story height,

         16  intricate brick cladding, second- story

         17  fenestration, a peaked roof and pedimented dormers.

         18                 By the 1820's, the vicinity of

         19  Greenwich and Canal Streets, once a Manhattan

         20  marshland known as Lispenard Meadows, had become a

         21  thriving mixed- use district.  Trinity Church had

         22  developed the area around fashionable Hudson Square

         23  to the southeast and a steamboat ferry to Hoboken.

         24  The public Clinton Market and a country market were

         25  established to the west.  Beginning around 1820,
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          2  members of the German immigrant Rohr family began to

          3  develop rowhouses on the westside of Greenwich

          4  Street, both south and north of Canal Street, on

          5  land then owned by Alexander and Sara Lispenard

          6  Stewart.  John Rohr, a mason builder, probably

          7  constructed these houses although he never lived in

          8  either of them, but owned them until 1846.  By 1851,

          9  the buildings had become rooming houses.

         10                 Despite the loss of some

         11  architectural details, these houses are among the

         12  very rare surviving and significantly intact modest

         13  Manhattan buildings of the federal- style period,

         14  and are two of the group of 13 federal houses that

         15  the Commission and many preservation advocates have

         16  wanted to designate for a long time.  Their survival

         17  is particularly notable in a neighborhood that was

         18  redeveloped within industrial and loft buildings in

         19  the late 19th and 20th centuries.

         20                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         21  the designation of 486 and 488 Greenwich.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         23  much.  We have two speakers signed up to testify,

         24  Joanne Hendrick in opposition and Andrew Berman in

         25  support.  Ms. Hendrick is here.  Okay.  The Sergeant

                                                            32

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  will help you to  --

          3                 MS. HENDRICK: I'm Joanne Hendrick,

          4  and I guess because this process has been  --  and I

          5  live at 488 Greenwich Street.  This process in our

          6  lives has been going on for more than 30 years.  I

          7  applied for landmark status maybe 25 years ago, and

          8  I never heard anything from Landmarks about it.

          9                 We were always very concerned when

         10  Westway was a threat that eminent domain could come

         11  and take our houses away from us because we love our

         12  houses, and we take care of our houses, and we

         13  didn't alter them by adding height to them.  In

         14  fact, this morning I cleaned my gutters in the front

         15  and the back, and in our neighborhood now that's a

         16  very strange thing to do because I have Philip

         17  Johnson to the right of me, Donald Trump to the left

         18  of me and Winker Doubledam in front of me.  These

         19  are all very fantastic buildings and we live in this

         20  very modest little house.

         21                 The reason why we object to  --  or

         22  maybe it's not an objection.  It's a recognition

         23  about landmark status.  It's a note, or a letter

         24  that I would like to read from my husband which he

         25  had read at an April 10th, 2007 meeting on
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          2  landmarks.

          3                 Now you're going to say this is sour

          4  grapes, but it's not really sour grapes.  It's just

          5  our perspective of this whole situation.  On the

          6  first part, it  --  my husband statement --  is a

          7  little flowery, but here it goes.  Landmarks are an

          8  important vital part of the fabric of New York City.

          9    They benefit all New Yorkers.  Landmarks not only

         10  preserve history, they make the City more liveable

         11  and are an asset to the people who live in New York,

         12  its businesses and to those who visit our City.  And

         13  that I do know because I've had tours and I've had

         14  people come in the house, in my shop and they say

         15  oh, how old is this building?  I always give them a

         16  little run down of the history, and I have to say

         17  that you don't find that very much in New York City.

         18    If somebody would go across the street, they would

         19  say you're not allowed in this building because

         20  there is a person sitting at the desk and says who

         21  are you and what are you here for?  Anyway, what a

         22  dead place this would be without traces of

         23  architectural history that aren't preserved.  What a

         24  dead place this would be if we were all forced to

         25  walk the sterile canyons of corporate mundanity and

                                                            34

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  wastelands of mausoleums of living.  My husband can

          3  have flowery speech sometimes.  Yes, we are for

          4  landmarks, and history, and beauty and good

          5  architecture, but the process to preserve is complex

          6  and potentially very costly to us personally.

          7                 A number of years ago, I put forward

          8  a concept to Rhonda Wist of the Landmarks

          9  Preservation Commission that landmarking a building

         10  was a form of taking, and that the owner should be

         11  compensated in some form just as wealthy landowners

         12  upstate are compensated when they deed their

         13  development rights to state parks.  She agreed.

         14                 Two years ago or so I wrote a formal

         15  letter about the suggestion to the Commission.

         16  Finally, after writing the Commissioner a reminder

         17  letter this January  --  that's January 2006  --

         18  the Commissioner's lawyer responded by dismissing my

         19  concept.  Well if it's not a taking then perhaps

         20  it's a giving.  We respectfully request that before

         21  a final decision on the landmarking of 488 Greenwich

         22  Street is made we have the opportunity to consult

         23  with counsel in order to preserve our rights.

         24                 Anyway, that's how it is.  We've

         25  lived in our house for 33 some years.  I applied for
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          2  landmark status ages ago.  We preserved our house.

          3  We preserved our house from all the development.  I

          4  sure eminent domain could have taken our house down

          5  in many ways.  We had real estate agents calling us

          6  left and right when all the development was

          7  happening.  So I guess what my husband is asking is

          8  that we just have some sort of recognition that we

          9  have preserved our house for so many years, that we

         10  didn't tear it down, that it's a charming lovely

         11  house and it's part of New York City history.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So I'm a little

         13  confused.

         14                 MS. HENDRICK: I guess my husband

         15  wants to know you know like maybe there should be

         16  some sort of recognition.  Our taxes keep going up.

         17  We're still uncertain whether our taxes can go up

         18  drastically because it's a big changed neighborhood,

         19  and it's a big changed neighborhood these days.  We

         20  live in these modest, modest houses, and we've

         21  always lived in a very modest way, and we feel that

         22  we're part of the fabric of New York City.  We don't

         23  have gilt and all that kind of roofing.  We have

         24  lovely charming windows without storm windows which

         25  let in the cold.  It's just a beautiful way to
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          2  preserve New York City, and that's what we've done.

          3  Just having a little bit of recognition that

          4  original architecture, or the appearance of the

          5  house is something very special.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I think that by

          7  landmarking the building we would be, as a City,

          8  providing that recognition that you have a

          9  historical and beautiful home that you have taken

         10  great pride in and have worked very hard to preserve

         11  and maintain, and obviously are willing to share

         12  with tourists, as you mentioned, as they come by.

         13  You're always very happy to share the history  --

         14                 MS. HENDRICK: Sometimes I'm not

         15  gracious because it's not  --  I repeat the same

         16  thing over and over and over again. It can be  --

         17  and it's a free admission to a 19th century house.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Which is very

         19  generous of you to share with the public.

         20                 MS. HENDRICK: Well I think that often

         21  times once these newspaper articles in the Times

         22  about taxes and how taxes are going up in single-

         23  family houses  --  I think that's basically what one

         24  of our concerns would be, ours and my brother- in-

         25  law who lives next door to us.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Well landmarking

          3  would not have an impact on your tax bill.

          4                 MS. HENDRICK: That I know.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: There's an issue,

          6  obviously, across the City where we're seeing it in

          7  all five boroughs. Assessments are up, and real

          8  estate values are up which means that homeowners

          9  have to pay more in taxes.  I know as a body this

         10  past year during the budget cycle we tried to cap

         11  the amount of class shares for one and two- family

         12  homes which was our effort to try and bring some

         13  relief to that situation, but we recognize that

         14  everywhere in this City, particularly owners of

         15  single- family homes are getting assessments and tax

         16  bills that are very difficult to pay.  I think we

         17  all recognize that and realize that and are trying

         18  to address that during the budget process as best as

         19  we can, but today in terms of landmarking the

         20  structure, designating this property wouldn't have

         21  an impact one way or another on your tax bill.

         22                 MS. HENDRICK: Oh I know that taxes

         23  would go up zoom just like that.  I think it's for

         24  future because we  --  for my children knowing that

         25  they can afford to keep our houses.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: It's a real

          3  issue, and we are cognizant of it and we understand.

          4                 MS. HENDRICK: I think that that's one

          5  thing that my husband who wasn't able to be here

          6  today, is what he would like to have a little bit of

          7  recognition that the houses have been preserved over

          8  these years and just a reassurance that you're doing

          9  all you can to help us preserve them for New York

         10  City.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We are.  Council

         12  Member Barron.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I just want to

         14  be clear.  Are you against the designation?

         15                 MS. HENDRICK: As I said, I applied

         16  for landmark status more than 25 years ago.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I got that.  I

         18  don't mean to cut you off.  I got that part already,

         19  but right now, are you against the designation?

         20                 MS. HENDRICK: I think what my husband

         21  would like to have is  --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Compensation?

         23                 MS. HENDRICK: Well it's not monetary

         24  compensation. That's for sure.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm just
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          2  trying  --

          3                 MS. HENDRICK: I think he wants

          4  something more than that.  I think he wants some

          5  sort of notice that something has been preserved all

          6  of these years.  I think he wants recognition

          7  knowing that our house will not be taken away by

          8  eminent domain as it could have been ages ago.  Well

          9  I guess it won't now at this point, but those were

         10  real threats in our lives, and really are those

         11  threats in your life when  --  Am I against it?  I

         12  love looking at architecture  --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: All right.

         14  Thank you very much.

         15                 MS. HENDRICK: And we've preserved it

         16  all these years.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         19  much, and thank you for your work preserving it.

         20                 MS. HENDRICK: Oh, sure.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Mr. Berman.

         22                 MR. BERMAN: Hi.  Good morning.  Thank

         23  you for the opportunity to testify.  I don't have

         24  written comments.  I actually just noticed this

         25  morning that this was on the agenda, but I did want

                                                            40

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  to  --  since I'm here for another item  --  speak

          3  up in support of designation of both houses.

          4                 As was mentioned in the statement

          5  read from Speaker Quinn, these two houses are two of

          6  a proposal for 13 federal houses in Lower Manhattan

          7  that the Greenwich Village  --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I'm sorry.  There

          9  was a request that you introduce yourself with your

         10  title for the record.

         11                 MR. BERMAN: Sure.  I'm sorry.  I'm

         12  Andrew Berman, Executive Director of the Greenwich

         13  Village Society for Historic Preservation.

         14                 As I was saying, these two houses are

         15  among 13 that the New York Landmarks Conservancy and

         16  the Society have put forward in 2002 or 2003 to the

         17  Commission.  There are actually literally -  There's

         18  150 federal- era houses, houses built between 1790

         19  and 1835 in Lower Manhattan that are lacking in

         20  landmark protection. This was a very tiny sort of

         21  nibble at what we hope will be a larger group that

         22  the Commission will look at.  We've been making very

         23  slow but steady progress.  I think these are maybe

         24  the sixth and seventh of those 13 that have moved

         25  forward, and they're a really important part of the
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          2  historic fabric of Lower Manhattan.

          3                 I also want to say there are actually

          4  certain things about what has been said here that I

          5  am sympathetic to and understand.  It's unfortunate

          6  when the City agrees to landmark one or two

          7  properties while at the same time they upzone the

          8  rest of the neighborhood.  Everybody else kind of

          9  cashes out.  Huge high rises go up around them, and

         10  conscientious owners who have over the years

         11  maintained their properties don't necessarily get

         12  the same economic benefit that their neighbors did

         13  for doing the right thing.

         14                 All of that said, of course, as we

         15  know, with landmark designation there are in the

         16  laws certain avenues that are open to you as the

         17  owner of a landmark property in order to be able to

         18  make sure you benefit.  There's also I know that

         19  these property have been determined eligible for the

         20  National Register of Historic Places, which means

         21  that there are tax breaks and grants open to them

         22  which would not otherwise be open to them to help

         23  make sure that this public good that they are

         24  serving that are means to support that and that the

         25  public does bear a part of that burden. I just want
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          2  to say that you do deserve to be congratulated for

          3  the great job that you did over the years, and I am

          4  certainly sympathetic to the paradox of the

          5  situation that you're in, but I do urge the

          6  Subcommittee to approve these.

          7                 MS. HENDRICK: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you, and I

          9  know the Speaker has been working with you and with

         10  the other electeds in the area on this and the other

         11  properties that are out there and haven't been

         12  designated and feels very strongly about that.

         13                 MS. HENDRICK: I just wanted to also

         14  that often times and over the years I've had to go

         15  like this outside protecting my house because of

         16  cranes coming over my house, being over my house for

         17  like I don't know how many months.  It's been a

         18  terrible fight just to go through the whole

         19  development.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: There's a lot of

         21  construction happening in that area.

         22                 MS. HENDRICK: A lot of construction,

         23  a lot of vibration.  My house still shakes from

         24  overweight trucks going up and down the street.  I

         25  think that we're very good New Yorkers, but maybe
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          2  19th century New Yorkers.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

          4  much, Ms. Hendrick.  With that, we're going to close

          5  the hearing on item number 589 and open the hearing

          6  on 590.  Note that the Landmarks Commission has

          7  already testified on the two properties together.

          8                 Is there anyone else here signed up

          9  to testify on 590, which is 486 Greenwich Street?

         10  No.  Okay.  Thank you very much.  The hearing on

         11  that item is closed.

         12                 With that, before we move on to the

         13  hearing on Council Member Mendez' bill which is

         14  Intro No. 542, I would ask Counsel to call for a

         15  vote on the items we have heard today and the

         16  Sunnyside Gardens Historic District.  I recommend a

         17  favorable vote.

         18                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Chair

         19  Lappin.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Aye.

         21                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:Council

         22  Member Barron.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Aye.

         24                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:Council

         25  Member Liu.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

          3                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:Council

          4  Member Martinez.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes.

          6                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

          7  Member Palma.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Yes.

          9                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:Council

         10  Member Arroyo.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Yes.

         12                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:Council

         13  Member Mendez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Yes.

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

         16  Member Comrie.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes.

         18                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

         19  Member Oddo.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         21                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: The vote is

         22  nine in the affirmative, none in the negative and

         23  not abstentions.  All of the items are referred to

         24  the full Committee.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.  Now we're
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          2  going to move onto the public hearing on Intro 542,

          3  which is legislation that was authored by Council

          4  Member Mendez.  I am very proud to be a sponsor of

          5  this legislation as well.  It would require the

          6  Landmarks Commission to issue notice to the

          7  Department of Buildings when a property is under

          8  consideration for designation as a landmark and

          9  would require the Buildings Department to issue

         10  notice to the Landmarks Commission when permit

         11  applications for buildings under consideration are

         12  received.  Under certain conditions, previously

         13  issued permits could be revoked by the Department of

         14  Buildings when a property is designated as a

         15  landmark.

         16                 This is an issue that is near and

         17  dear to my heart. Earlier this year, the Council

         18  affirmed designation for two buildings in my

         19  district, City and Suburban the First Avenue Estate.

         20    Buildings that, as you may recall, were

         21  constructed at the turn of the century as affordable

         22  housing.  The Board of Estimate had stripped their

         23  designation in a bad back room deal in 1990, and

         24  this was the Council's opportunity to fix that and

         25  to right that wrong.  There were two advocates in my
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          2  community, Elizabeth McCracken and Joy Kieras, who I

          3  believe are here today, who were very successful in

          4  the effort to designate these buildings, but

          5  unfortunately a number of years ago, precisely

          6  because the owner thought that these buildings were

          7  under consideration by the Landmarks Commission, the

          8  owner obtained permits to enlarge the windows,

          9  remove the parapets and make facade restorations.

         10  The owner, after designation, acted on these

         11  permits, and I believe solely for the purposes of a

         12  lawsuit, and certainly before designation, used

         13  these permits as a threat to try and avoid

         14  designation.  The owner has now removed the

         15  parapets, enlarged the windows and taken what was a

         16  very attractive facade and covered it over in ugly

         17  pink stucco.  There is no doubt in my mind that the

         18  landlord took these actions in retaliation for

         19  designation and in the hopes of potentially

         20  overturning the designation in the courts. I don't

         21  think that he will be successful because this

         22  building is not only architecturally significant,

         23  but historically significant as well, and part of

         24  the affordable housing movement in this City and, in

         25  fact, across the country.  The point is the owner
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          2  took what are important buildings and destroyed

          3  portions of them with permits that they had obtained

          4  prior to the designation, and I think that kind of

          5  action should be prevented and stopped in the

          6  future.  So today this legislation, that I'm going

          7  to turn over to Council Member Mendez to speak to,

          8  would help prevent what happened at City and

          9  Suburban and what's happened at other properties

         10  across the City, prevent it from happening again.

         11                 Council Member Mendez.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you,

         13  Chairwoman Lappin, and thank you for your support

         14  and your leadership in this Subcommittee, and for

         15  holding a hearing on this legislation.  I know that

         16  my colleagues and I have many things in common.  One

         17  thing is our desire to preserve the historical

         18  nature of our neighborhoods and preserve our

         19  landmark buildings.

         20                 To often, historical and landmark

         21  buildings that make our neighborhoods what they are

         22  and attract tourists are destroyed for the wrong

         23  reason.  A common theme we've seen across this City

         24  is owners who obtain building permits, never do any

         25  work, and then once the building is landmarked or
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          2  about to be landmarked, use the building permits to

          3  destroy the building or parts of the building.  This

          4  legislation would ensure that that doesn't happen

          5  anymore.

          6                 The process would be analogous to

          7  what is already in place for zoning changes.  This

          8  bill will also improve the communication between

          9  Department of Buildings and the Landmarks

         10  Preservation Commission.  Many people have commented

         11  on how necessary this is.  From what I understand

         12  DOB doesn't have a complete list of landmarked

         13  buildings.  It's not on their system, and might give

         14  out permits when they shouldn't.  Improved

         15  communications should prevent these instances from

         16  occurring.

         17                 My intention is not to penalize

         18  homeowners or owners who have spent a substantial

         19  amount of money on renovating a building or their

         20  home, but to catch any bad actors and close what is

         21  an obvious loophole.  My hope is that we can leave

         22  here today with some consensus on how to preserve

         23  our historic landmarks while not placing unfair

         24  burdens on anyone.  If these buildings are

         25  meaningful enough to landmark then we ought to
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          2  protect them from those certain owners who intend to

          3  destroy them just because they can.

          4                 In my district what ended up

          5  happening is this individual had a Department of

          6  Buildings permit for years.  It got renewed because

          7  the law says if they applied for renewing, they can,

          8  and never used the permit and after the building was

          9  landmarked, started to destroy the architectural

         10  detail of the building on the outside dormers.  So

         11  my hope is that those kind of instances we will be

         12  able to avoid in the future.

         13                 I want to thank everyone for coming

         14  here to testify, and I want to thank you, once

         15  again, Chairwoman Lappin for co sponsoring this

         16  legislation with me.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you for

         18  taking leadership on this issue.

         19                 We have a letter that the Committee

         20  members may see in front of you from the Buildings

         21  Department relating to this legislation, but I think

         22  the agency that's here to testify for the

         23  Administration is the Landmarks Commission Mark

         24  Silberman.

         25                 MR. SILBERMAN: Now it's on.  Okay.
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          2  Hi.  Good morning, Chair Lappin and honorable

          3  members of the Subcommittee and Council Member

          4  Mendez.  My name is Mark Silberman.  I'm General

          5  Counsel, Landmarks Commission.  This testimony is

          6  submitted in connection with Subcommittee's

          7  consideration of Intro No. 542., which would create

          8  a procedure for redefining the validity of

          9  Department of Building, DOB, permits obtained prior

         10  to landmark designation, and for requiring certain

         11  notices between the Landmarks Preservation

         12  Commission and the DOB during the landmark process.

         13                 Under section 25- 321 of the

         14  Landmarks Law, a building permit issued prior to

         15  designation is considered grandfathered and the work

         16  may proceed after designation without review or

         17  approval of the LPC.  Instead of grandfathering all

         18  pre existing permits, Intro 542 would amend section

         19  25- 321 to create a procedure for determining

         20  whether a pre- existing permit should be

         21  grandfathered based on the amount of work that has

         22  occurred.

         23                 Specifically section 2 of the

         24  proposed bill requires that immediately after

         25  landmark designation, DOB suspend all pre existing
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          2  permits and issue stop work orders.  The DOB would

          3  then "forthwith determine if the holder of such

          4  permit has undertaken substantial construction and

          5  made substantial expenditures in furtherance of such

          6  permit prior to the designation".  If there has been

          7  such work and expenditure, the DOB would reinstate

          8  the permit. If not, the permit would be revoked.

          9                 Into 542 also requires that the LPC

         10  give DOB written notice of "any public hearing or

         11  meeting relating to any designation".  That's

         12  section 3, and for these buildings requires that DOB

         13  forward a copy of permit applications to the LPC

         14  within three days of their submission.  That's

         15  section 4.  It also requires LPC to give DOB notice

         16  of all designations, section 1.

         17                 In amending Landmarks Law section 25-

         18  321, the proposed bill attempts to address a problem

         19  with existing law. Because of the grandfathering

         20  provision, a few building owners have obtained DOB

         21  permits for substantial facade work or even

         22  demolition as a way to fend off potential landmark

         23  designation.  In some cases, the permit has been

         24  pulled in connection with pending development plans

         25  that have been under active consideration for
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          2  substantial periods of time, even years.  In others

          3  it is obtained solely to preserve the owner's

          4  ability to develop the site in the future.  The

          5  existence of such a demolition or facade permit can

          6  be a practical impediment to landmark designation.

          7  In deciding whether to designate, the LPC much

          8  carefully weigh the scope of the approved work, the

          9  reasons for wanting to designate the property and

         10  the significant features of the property.

         11                 LPC and DOB staff have discussed

         12  Intro 542.  In these discussions DOB identified

         13  numerous practical difficulties in implementing the

         14  new review procedure and will be commenting on these

         15  issues.  Leaving these issues aside, the LPC

         16  respectfully submits the following observations and

         17  comments on Intro 542.

         18                 First, the proposed bill attempts to

         19  address a serious, but limited, problem.  The LPC

         20  has a long and extensive history and policy of

         21  outreach to owners of potential landmarks, in an

         22  effort to avoid unnecessary conflict and to address

         23  misconceptions about what landmark designation

         24  means.  The vast majority of these owners do not

         25  attempt to undermine the Landmarks Law by trying to
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          2  pull permits prior to designation.  Section 25- 321

          3  represents a delicate balance between agency

          4  authority and private property rights that has

          5  functioned remarkably well for more than 40 years.

          6  Changing how this provision works is extremely

          7  complicated and may have serious unintended

          8  consequences.

          9                 Second, there is no definition for

         10  what constitutes substantial construction and

         11  substantial expenditures.  How those terms are

         12  interpreted will go a long way in defining the scope

         13  and effectiveness of the proposed bill.

         14                 Third, the new DOB review procedure

         15  will likely have its most significant impact on

         16  owners who attempt to grandfather permits in the

         17  months immediately prior to designation.  Because

         18  the proposed bill requires that substantial

         19  construction be undertaken, it will difficult for

         20  owners to obtain DOB permits, line up contractors

         21  and perform substantial in a short period of time.

         22                 Fourth, because the critical issue is

         23  the amount of work done before designation, the

         24  review procedure will probably have a more limited

         25  effect on owners who are intent on trying to avoid
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          2  designation.  These owners, those with specific

          3  development plans and those with no desire to

          4  develop the property in the foreseeable future, will

          5  know that they must do substantial construction and

          6  expend substantial sums in connection with their

          7  permits.  These owners may decide to do the work now

          8  to avoid any risk that the permit could be

          9  invalidated in the future for lack of work.

         10                 Fifth, because of this dynamic,

         11  amending section 25 321 may, ironically, result in

         12  inappropriate work that could have been mitigated or

         13  even avoided.  As discussed above, in an attempt to

         14  preserve the right to demolish property or develop

         15  it, developers may strip architectural detail even

         16  though they have no particular development plans.

         17  IF there was no imperative to do that now, it is

         18  possible that a building could be sold to a more

         19  sympathetic or creative owner who is willing and

         20  able to work with the LPC to develop the building in

         21  an appropriate manner.

         22                 In addition, grandfathered permits

         23  often arise in connection with additions, as people

         24  want to preserve their ability to add a rooftop or

         25  rear yard addition in the future.  There have been
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          2  cases where permits for additions have not been

          3  acted on for years after designation, with owners

          4  simply renewing them. Eventually the owner, usually

          5  a new owner, decides to do the work but wants to

          6  change the design.  Under section 25- 321, only the

          7  work approved by the permit is grandfathered  Any

          8  change to the scope of work invalidates the

          9  grandfathered status.  Because of this, a new owner

         10  often will approach the Commission and seek to

         11  modify the grandfathered work in exchange for making

         12  it more appropriate, either by making it less

         13  visible or changing the material or fenestration to

         14  make the addition fit more appropriately with the

         15  historic building.  Intro 542 could eliminate this

         16  possibility.

         17                 Sixth, the new review procedure will

         18  be most effective against efforts to deface of

         19  demolish individual landmarks, as opposed to efforts

         20  to damage buildings in potential historic districts.

         21    With an individual landmark, the LPC may be able

         22  to expedite its research in response to a permit and

         23  designate before substantial construction work is

         24  done.  Because historic districts may involve many

         25  buildings, and the research and outreach to owners
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          2  is more involved, it is more difficult to

          3  significantly expedite the designation process, and

          4  it is more likely that a permit can be pulled and

          5  substantial work performed before designation.

          6  Although the significance of an historic district

          7  lies in the cumulative sense of place created by the

          8  buildings and spaces, so the loss of a single of a

          9  few buildings will not undermine the district as a

         10  whole, significant buildings may be lost or

         11  significantly altered even if the new DOB review

         12  procedure is put in place.

         13                 Seventh, the new review procedure may

         14  be potentially burdensome and time consuming when

         15  applied to large, newly designated historic

         16  districts.  The proposed bill requires the DOB to

         17  suspend and review all outstanding DOB permits

         18  existing at the time of designation.  The LPC

         19  routinely designates historic districts containing

         20  several hundred buildings, such as the 624 building

         21  Sunnyside Gardens Historic District in Queens, which

         22  you all just affirmed today, and the 473 Crown

         23  Heights North Historic District in Brooklyn.  In

         24  districts this large, there are bound to be many DOB

         25  permits extant at the time of designation, and DOB
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          2  review could be lengthy and time consuming.  An

          3  unreasonable delay in making the required

          4  determination under the proposed bill will be

          5  burdensome and exasperating to homeowners in the

          6  middle of renovations and could be used by opponents

          7  of designation.

          8                 Eighth  --  this is a minor point.

          9  There is an ambiguity with respect to the

         10  application of Intro 542 to scenic landmarks.  The

         11  DOB is required to suspend a permit and perform its

         12  substantial work and substantial expenditure

         13  analysis for permits to work on "any landscape

         14  feature of a scenic landmark."  However, elsewhere

         15  in the same section, City landmarks are made exempt

         16  from the new review process, and scenic landmarks

         17  are, by definition, City- owned.

         18                 With respect to the proposed notice

         19  requirements, these may be unnecessary as the LPC

         20  and DOB already engage in this type of notification.

         21    At the time the LPC votes to formally consider a

         22  building or district for designation and "calendars"

         23  the building or properties for a public hearing, LPC

         24  staff go into the DOB's Building Information System

         25   --  that's BIS  --  and put a C for calendar into
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          2  the Landmark field.  Each week the DOB sends a

          3  report to the LPC of all permit applications

          4  received for calendared buildings.  Finally, once a

          5  property is designated, LPC staff change the C to L

          6  for landmarked.

          7                 Thank you very much, and I'm happy to

          8  answer any questions you may have.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Oh I've got

         10  questions, and I'm sure Council Member Mendez does

         11  as well.

         12                 First off, I'm not sure why the

         13  Buildings Department didn't send somebody to

         14  testify.  I have their letter, but because you're

         15  here, I'm going to have to ask you questions about

         16  your testimony and their testimony, and it seems

         17  like they really have your here to do their bidding.

         18    I would think that this bill would help the

         19  Landmarks Commission and make it easier for you,

         20  both in terms of designation, and in terms of legal

         21  battles that are now occurring because owners are

         22  obtaining these permits.  So I'm surprised that the

         23  Landmarks Commission would not be supportive of this

         24  because I think this bill would really help you do

         25  your job better in terms of protecting the historic
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          2  fabric of our City.

          3                 That said, I think the issue here is

          4  that there are good actors and bad actors.  We all

          5  know that.  The point of this legislation is to keep

          6  the bad actors from obtaining permits simply to

          7  avoid designation, and even if it doesn't happen

          8  often, it's happening.  Each building that we lose

          9   --  You know it's been one in my community.  It's

         10  been one in Council Member Mendez' community.  It's

         11  been one in Council Member Brewer's community, and

         12  it's starting to happen more and more, and one

         13  building is one building too many for each of us and

         14  for the communities and the City as a whole that we

         15  represent.

         16                 In terms of your specific objections,

         17  I guess I'd like to go through them one by one.

         18  When you discuss the fact that --  Well I think I've

         19  already addressed number one, that it may be a

         20  limited problem.  A limited problem is a problem

         21  nonetheless.

         22                 Your third objection which deals with

         23  substantial construction and it being difficult for

         24  owners to obtain permits, it doesn't seem to me that

         25  it's all that difficult for owners to obtain
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          2  permits.  I think the point of this legislation is

          3   --  I think what you're trying to speak to is that

          4  they are going to try to do this work in months

          5  immediately prior to designation.  So if it's

          6  difficult for them to obtain the permits, how is it

          7  that they are obtaining these permits now?

          8                 MR. SILBERMAN: I think, first of all,

          9  Chair Lappin, let me make I think the position clear

         10  if I failed to do so in the testimony.  I think we

         11  believe this is a good first step in attempting to

         12  address the problem.  So we're not necessarily

         13  opposed to the concepts behind this bill.  The

         14  purpose of the testimony was really to identify

         15  issues.  This is a very delicate balance as I said,

         16  and we think that is needs to be approached very,

         17  very carefully.

         18                 The point I was making going now to

         19  your question about my third point, again, maybe I

         20  spoke not as clearly as I should have.  The point is

         21  I think the effectiveness of the bill will be

         22  precisely in those few months prior to a designation

         23  because you have to do substantial work.  I think

         24  that the bill, if enacted in this or similar form,

         25  would, in fact, make it difficult for people to do
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          2  substantial because they have to do that work.  It

          3  might be difficult.  So I think that would be the

          4  one area where the bill, and with respect to

          5  individual landmarks as I said later on, that's

          6  where I think the bill will have its most

          7  significant impact.

          8                 I think with respect to City and

          9  Suburban, or P.S. 64, in those cases the owners had

         10  those permits years before, and so I think that just

         11  thinking it through in sort of a game theory way, if

         12  those owners knew that they needed to act on those

         13  permits before designation, they would have done so

         14  sooner in those cases. They had the permits in

         15  advance.  They would have done that work earlier, or

         16  it's likely they would have done it.  So the point

         17  in point three was simply that I think that the bill

         18  will have its greatest impact in those people who

         19  try to pull the permits and then do the work

         20  suddenly because they are not going to have the time

         21  to do so.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: But wouldn't that

         23  be a positive?

         24                 MR. SILBERMAN: Yes, it's meant to be

         25  as a positive. That's where it will have its most
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          2  effective impact.  I guess what I'm trying to say

          3   --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: That was not well

          5  communicated. I mean it's nice to hear that you are

          6  overall supportive of the concept because that did

          7  not come through from your testimony.

          8                 MR. SILBERMAN: I think we see the

          9  issue here.  This is not going to be  --  It's been

         10  talked about I think to a certain extent as a cure-

         11  all for this problem.  So I think that just the way

         12  that it's put together and just the reality of

         13  things, it's not going to be a cure- all.  There's

         14  going to be those situations where people have

         15  permits.  They're going to act on them.  There is

         16  going to be situations, as I said later, one of the

         17  unintended consequences of changing the law may be

         18  that people will do the work now across the City.

         19  People may decide I really don't want to be

         20  landmarked in the future.  I'm just going to do that

         21  work. That's a possibility.  So the point to the

         22  testimony was just to raise sort of the various

         23  issues that we think  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I understand, but

         25  it's a possibility now.
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          2                 MR. SILBERMAN: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And the

          4  legislation has no change in terms of an owner  --

          5  They're not designated.  They can go out.  They can

          6  get a permit, and you know what?  Most of the

          7  properties across the City are never going to be

          8  landmarked, and so getting permits and performing

          9  work are completely appropriate.  So whether or not

         10  this bill is enacted somebody can still get a permit

         11  today for a building that's not landmarked and do

         12  the work tomorrow, and that would still be the case

         13  if this bill were enacted because they would be able

         14  to get a permit and they would be able to do the

         15  work.  I think the goal is for people who try to get

         16  these permits right before they hear, they sort of

         17  catch wind, that you're looking at these properties.

         18    So they rush out to get these permits to try and

         19  avoid designation, and as you said, this would make

         20  it more difficult for them to do that.

         21                 MR. SILBERMAN: Correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I think that's

         23  part of the goal here.

         24                 MR. SILBERMAN: And I think that

         25  that's  --  Again, the intent of point three was to
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          2  say that's where it will have its greatest impact.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: But I'm just

          4  saying in terms of people who say that they're going

          5  to go out and act on these permits more quickly,

          6  well they could do that now.  So this bill, I don't

          7  think, would really speed that process up for people

          8  who have had the permits for years and years and

          9  years.

         10                 MR. SILBERMAN: The only example I

         11  think, and I mentioned it, I can't speak to the

         12  great fears that many people will say this bill may

         13  have.  I agree with you people who want to do the

         14  work will do the work.  There are situations, and

         15  again, we specifically see it with respect to

         16  additions where people don't do the work.  It's just

         17  done prophylactically as a way to protect their

         18  rights.  Because they don't have to do the work,

         19  they just keep that permit, and then in the future,

         20  they do come to us and we have many times

         21  substantially made changes to that rooftop addition

         22  that's quite visible to make it far more

         23  appropriate, but because they didn't have to do the

         24  work.  If they knew they had to do that work prior

         25  to designation, they would have just put on the ugly
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          2  box on top of their building just to protect their

          3  interest.  So that's an example of where it may have

          4  those kind of unintended consequences.

          5                 The goal here is to make sure we all

          6  understand that it's a complex thing, and there are

          7  going to be people who over react and there are

          8  going to be some consequences.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I think there is

         10  recognition that it's a complex issues, and in terms

         11  of the scenic landmarks piece, I think that's

         12  something that could be relatively easily addressed

         13  working out the ambiguity in the bill.

         14                 The last question I wanted to ask

         15  before  --  and I have more questions, but I wanted

         16  to give Council Member Mendez a chance to respond.

         17  When you talk about, with an individual landmark,

         18  LPC may be able to expedite its research in response

         19  to a permit and designate before substantial

         20  construction work is done, I'm not sure I understand

         21  that because once they have the permit, it doesn't

         22  matter how quickly you do your research.  They have

         23  the permit, and they can use it.  So I'm not sure I

         24  understand that statement.

         25                 MR. SILBERMAN: My comments in this
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          2  testimony presume that if the bill was passed.  So

          3  because the bill substantially changes the existing

          4  law which says once you have a permit that's all

          5  that counts and places an additional requirement of

          6  substantial work and substantial expenditure.

          7  Pulling a permit, in fact, is only the first step,

          8  and because an individual landmark  --  So let's say

          9  we calendar a building that doesn't have a permit

         10  and then they pull a permit, or they pull a permit

         11  right before we calendar it, they still have to do

         12  all this work in order to vest under the substantial

         13  construction and substantial expenditure test that's

         14  now in the bill.  So what it does do is it allows

         15  us, because it's an individual building, we can

         16  theoretically can do that research.  It's only one

         17  building.  We can do it faster, and we could finish

         18  up the designation process fast enough to prevent

         19  them from actually doing significant work, and

         20  thereby, under the provisions of the proposed bill,

         21  wouldn't be vested.  So that's what I was trying to

         22  say that that's  --  So for individual landmarks

         23  because we can speed things up, we can probably beat

         24  the clock so to speak and prevent people from doing

         25  substantial work and construction to vest.  For
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          2  historic district, it's a lot more --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So you're saying

          4  that's a positive aspect of the bill.

          5                 MR. SILBERMAN: Yes, I'm saying,

          6  again, the real significance of the program

          7  addressed in this bill will be, first of all, people

          8  trying to pull permits right before designation, and

          9  secondly, it will have its greatest impact on

         10  individual landmarks because for individual

         11  landmarks we can move quicker and designate quicker.

         12                 Historic districts, because they're

         13  so big, it's much harder to sort of speed that up in

         14  any significant way in response to a permit on a

         15  building, or a couple of buildings, in a 600

         16  building district.  It is more likely that people

         17  will be able to pull a permit and actually do work

         18  before designation, and thereby, vest under this  --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So from your

         20  perspective, the two biggest positives of the bill

         21  are that it would help keep people from getting

         22  permits at the last minute and doing work just

         23  because they hear at the last minute that you're

         24  going to calendar them, and with individual

         25  structures, it would help you because you would be
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          2  able to do your research more quickly and designate

          3  them before they did significant capital.

          4                 MR. SILBERMAN: Correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.

          6                 MR. SILBERMAN: I wish you had written

          7  my testimony.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Well it's nice to

          9  know that there is some positive aspects of the bill

         10  that you like.  Council Member Mendez.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you,

         12  Chair Lappin. There are some points that are well

         13  taken about the scenic landmarks, the historic

         14  districts, and what I want to do is try to make a

         15  good bill.  So I'm sure we will engage in

         16  discussion, and I would like for our staff to meet

         17  with Landmarks and, in some cases, with DOB and some

         18  of the advocates to try to figure out how to make

         19  this a better bill.  I've already gotten some

         20  comments from the advocates in recent months.

         21                 MR. SILBERMAN: We'd be happy to

         22  participate in those meetings.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I appreciate

         24  that.  If we could maybe for some people who are

         25  here, and since this is being taped for the public,
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          2  if we could explain there are different stages.

          3  There is when a building is being considered, when a

          4  building is calendared and when a building then is

          5  actually landmarked.  Can you explain that to the

          6  public, please?

          7                 MR. SILBERMAN: The designation

          8  process officially starts with a vote by the

          9  Landmarks Commission at a public meeting to

         10   "calendar" the building for official consideration.

         11    What that means is that the Commission will hold a

         12  public hearing on that individual building, or

         13  district as the case may be, some time in the

         14  future.  Subsequently, there is a hearing in which

         15  the public testifies, owners testify.  Anyone who

         16  wants to testify may.  The Commission considers

         17  that.  On occasion there is more than one hearing.

         18                 During this whole process, the

         19  Research Department at the Landmarks Commission is

         20  doing research on the proposed building, or the

         21  district.  Subsequently, the Research Department

         22  submits to the Commissioners a report that sort of

         23  is their take on the significance of the building or

         24  district.

         25                 The Commission then brings the matter
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          2  back to a public meeting and votes on it.  That can

          3  happen for historic districts.  That process can be

          4  spread out over six or eight months, or longer

          5  depending on the size of the district and Commission

          6  commitments, and priorities and staff and that sort

          7  of thing.  Individual landmarks can also be months,

          8  but we can also do it quicker for individuals.  If

          9  we have to move fast, the Landmarks Law basically

         10  sets a 10- day window between the calendaring and

         11  the designation.  We can designate that quickly.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: When a

         13  building is under consideration?

         14                 MR. SILBERMAN: I'm not sure I

         15  understand the question.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Well like I,

         17  20 years ago, was part of group in Brooklyn when I

         18  lived there that asked for McCarren Park and Pool

         19  Center to be landmarked.  I have the great

         20  distinction, as part of this body, recently to have

         21  voted on landmarking said structure, but that

         22  process began in 1988 where we collected petitions,

         23  asked for landmarking.  So there was a big gap

         24  between 1988 and 2007.  So some matters get to the

         25  Commission and just sit there before you decide to
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          2  calendar.  Is that correct?

          3                 MR. SILBERMAN: The Commission

          4  receives requests for evaluation from members of the

          5  public.  A lot of them there is an internal review

          6  process that the Commission looks at, and

          7  ultimately, it's the decision of the Chair to decide

          8  sort of the set priorities and direction and move

          9  things forward to the full Commission.  That's done

         10  based on a whole variety of factors.

         11                 The current Chair Tierney, for

         12  example, has been very committed, I think as

         13  everyone knows doing designations in the boroughs

         14  outside of Manhattan.  That's been a priority.  So

         15  we've moved things.  Things that have been around

         16  and whatever.  Those have priority.  We also now

         17  have a Survey Department.  That allows us to do more

         18  things.  So the answer is it's a complex mixture of

         19  things, but things work through those processes and

         20  sometimes things are seen as not priorities at this

         21  time and are brought back up later.  So there can be

         22  substantial time between when an RFP is first

         23  submitted and eventual action.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you for

         25  explaining that.  That's why this legislation deals
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          2  with buildings once they've been landmarked, and

          3  it's because sometimes there is a long complicated

          4  process before calendaring and even after

          5  calendaring to be landmarked.

          6                 You say in your testimony that this

          7  addresses a limited problem, but it's a problem

          8  nonetheless, and in your first of your several

          9  issues that you analyze here you say that changing

         10  how this provision works is extremely complicated

         11  and may have serious unintended consequences.  Can

         12  you explain how, and if it's only in limited

         13  circumstances, do we have any idea how limited it

         14  is?  I mean my understanding is there are just maybe

         15  a dozen of these cases where there are existing

         16  permits and buildings have been landmarked.  So that

         17  seems to me like something that we can track when

         18  we're talking about individual buildings, not

         19  historic districts.

         20                 Again, I'd like to sit with the

         21  advocates and the Commission to talk about how this

         22  actually affects historic districts?  So I just want

         23  to talk about individual landmarked buildings.

         24                 MR. SILBERMAN: I think that we

         25  recognize that there is a serious problem.  We're
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          2  not trying to say that there's not a serious

          3  problem.  I think the goal here is to emphasize that

          4  the Commission has a pretty good working

          5  relationship and policy of dealing with owners of

          6  landmarked buildings, and that most people are not

          7  doing these things and not purposely going out of

          8  their way to sort of foil the intent of the

          9  Landmarks Law.  So the intent was to sort of

         10  recognize this is a problem that is a significant

         11  problem, but that it's not something that's

         12  happening hundreds of times, and that for the most

         13  part, people are being good citizens and working

         14  with the Landmarks Commission is a way that's

         15  productive.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Okay.  I still

         17  didn't get  -- How limited is the problem?  Do you

         18  happen to know how many buildings are being

         19  considered that have been calendared, that are being

         20  considered for landmarking, that have existing

         21  permits?

         22                 MR. SILBERMAN: I don't have that

         23  number.  I don't know if we  --  I'd have to check

         24  and see about that number.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Can you
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          2  explain to me the current process of communication

          3  between Department of Buildings and Landmarks

          4  Preservation Commission?

          5                 MR. SILBERMAN: Yes.  When we calendar

          6  a property, we, through a protocol with the Building

          7  Department established in the '80's, we have access

          8  to their computer system, the Building Information

          9  System, BIS.  One of our staff goes into the system

         10  and puts  --  In BIS, for each property, there is a

         11  lot of fields, including a field that says landmark

         12  status.  So every building in the City has that

         13  field in its computer BIS section.  We go in and we

         14  put a C in that field, and that means C for

         15  calendar.  What that means is pursuant to a protocol

         16  with the Department of Buildings is that if they get

         17  a permit application for a building with a C on it,

         18  they will alert us of that pending application.

         19  When the building is designated, we go in and we

         20  actually change that C to an L, and once it's

         21  changed to an L, the full sort of power of the

         22  Landmarks Law kicks in and the Buildings Department

         23  is forbidden from issuing any permit until we have

         24  first approved the work.  So there is a lot of

         25  communication between the two agencies on the
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          2  subject of what buildings are under consideration.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I've heard

          4  testimony here in the City Council during the budget

          5  hearings from advocates that said that the BIS

          6  system was not up- to- date and actually from some

          7  of my staff stating that the BIS system was not up-

          8  to- date.  This was earlier this year, and I believe

          9  also last year.  So the BIS system, in terms of

         10  putting the C and the L, calendar to landmark

         11  status, that is done by the Commission and only the

         12  Commission?

         13                 MR. SILBERMAN: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: There is no

         15  way of that information being changed anywhere along

         16  the line?

         17                 MR. SILBERMAN: I certainly can't say

         18  there is no way to change.  I think the issues

         19  you're referring to had to do with the L's dropping

         20  off of a number of buildings in Greenwich Village.

         21  It's happened in some other districts.  Those are

         22  situations that the Buildings Department, once we've

         23  been apprised of a problem, they have gone and done

         24  sweeps.  They've tried to fix it as fast as

         25  possible.  We go in any time we have notification of
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          2  it.  So it does happen, and once we become aware of

          3  it we fix it.  How it happens, I really can't say,

          4  but for the most part, the system works pretty well

          5  with Buildings when it comes to this sort of thing.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Okay.  You

          7  went through a lot of steps.  In your testimony, you

          8  say there's no definition of what constitutes

          9  substantial construction.  Actually we've paralleled

         10  it to the zoning code.  So actually it's the same

         11  definition as what is in the zoning.  Do you have

         12  any particular issues with the way it's defined in

         13  the zoning code?

         14                 MR. SILBERMAN: I don't have an

         15  expertise in the zoning code provision or the

         16  vesting provisions so I can't really speak to those.

         17    The point here was simply that depending on how

         18  it's defined it could be a lot of work and a lot of

         19  expenditure. I mean I'm a lawyer.  So substantial

         20  doesn't always mean substantial, what a normal

         21  person might think.  It really depends on how it's

         22  defined.  That was the goal.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Here we're

         24  trying to do some consistency within different City

         25  agencies and taking something that is already
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          2  drafted in the zoning regulations and using that

          3  definition.  So I would love to have further

          4  discussions once you are able, or someone is able,

          5  to look at the zoning code to see if there is a

          6  problem as it is defined in the zoning code when

          7  referenced to landmark buildings.

          8                 MR. SILBERMAN: Okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: In page three,

         10  in your fifth statement, you say may ironically

         11  result in inappropriate work that could have been

         12  mitigated, or even avoided.  I know that even

         13  sometimes prior to a building being designated,

         14  while it's been calendared, designated or

         15  potentially designated, the Commission has gone out

         16  of its way and have entered into standstill

         17  agreements with many owners.  Many of us are very

         18  appreciative of those steps while these

         19  determinations are being made, but I'm not quite

         20  sure what you mean by inappropriate work, and if

         21  there's anyway how that could be addressed in this

         22  legislation?

         23                 MR. SILBERMAN: At this point, I tried

         24  to sort of explain our position to Chair Lappin.  I

         25  think when without adopting perhaps other people's
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          2  views that this will review in catastrophic amount

          3  of work and all this other stuff.  I think that

          4  realistically there are examples, and I think

          5  everyone needs to just understand this if we go down

          6  this road, there are examples where an owner has

          7  been opposed to designation, they've had a permit,

          8  they've sold the building to a different owner.

          9  That person, for whatever reason, now they decide to

         10  do a tax act project, they decide they are going to

         11  do something different, economic conditions have

         12  changed, or whatever, and they decide they can deal

         13  with the building as is and preserve and adaptively

         14  reuse it.  The point is that because this bill says

         15  you've got to do the work in order to vest.  Not

         16  having a permit is not good enough. You've got to do

         17  the work.  There is going to be a certain sort of

         18  pressure on an owner if they really want to protect

         19  their rights to develop this property without the

         20  impediment of a landmark to do the work now and not

         21  worry about it later.  There will be examples, I

         22  think, where people do the work, and that maybe that

         23  work could have been avoided because it's now five

         24  or ten years later when the building is finally sold

         25  and the newer owner could be different.
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          2                 Again, the best sort of examples that

          3  I have of that are on this rooftop addition

          4  applications where people have pulled rooftop

          5  addition permits from the Department of Buildings

          6  prior to designation.  They hold on to them for a

          7  few years.  Inevitably what happens is the building

          8  is sold.  There is a new owner who hates the design

          9  of the rooftop addition and they want to change it,

         10  and they approach the Landmarks Commission and we

         11  tell them look, it's grandfathered.  That permit is

         12  grandfathered.  You change one inch of this and it's

         13  not grandfathered.  The law says you can build this

         14  particular thing and this particular thing only. If

         15  you want to change it then you're going to lose it,

         16  and they say to us well look can we work this out if

         17  we set it back, if we make it less visible, if we

         18  change the design?  If we do these things, where are

         19  we then?  Through that process, potentially very bad

         20  work is mitigated, sometimes avoided, and that's all

         21  I'm saying is that again, these people under the

         22  provisions of the bill, there is going to be, if

         23  they really want to preserve their right to have

         24  that rooftop addition, they are going to have to

         25  that work now. They're not going to be able to wait.
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          2    It most likely will have in some circumstances the

          3  unintended consequence of having people do work now

          4  that may have been avoided in the future.  That's

          5  all I'm trying to say.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: That may be

          7  so.  I think it's in cases where people are really

          8  speculating and have the resources to do that kind

          9  of work in a very short period of time.

         10                 MR. SILBERMAN: Maybe, yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Again, we're

         12  open to hearing how if in any manner you think those

         13  limited circumstances can be mitigated by the

         14  legislation that I'm proposing.

         15                 Can you tell us how many buildings

         16  are calendared and then landmarked in a given year?

         17  Do you have those numbers?

         18                 MR. SILBERMAN: I don't have the

         19  numbers with me.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Prior to

         21  calendaring, does DOB inform you if there are

         22  permits?  Is there any way of communicating with the

         23  Landmarks Preservation Commission prior to any

         24  calendaring or landmarking when there are existing

         25  permits?
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          2                 MR. SILBERMAN: Generally speaking,

          3  no.  The forum for that is through the inputting of

          4  the C.  That's the real process by which those

          5  communications happen.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Okay.  Thank

          7  you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.  I

          9  have to go back to the  --  Because Buildings

         10  outlines it as sort of their first objection to the

         11  bill that there's this great communication back and

         12  forth, but Council Member Mendez referenced, and I

         13  think we're going to hear today from advocates who

         14  discovered properties that are landmarked and not

         15  designated in the BIS system with the L. That's a

         16  cause for alarm if a property has been protected and

         17  it's not in the system.  So do we really have no

         18  idea how this is happening?

         19                 MR. SILBERMAN: I feel like the

         20  Buildings Department, it's their computer system and

         21  they need to be the proper party to answer that.  I

         22  really can't answer that.

         23                 I would just say one thing.  I would

         24  just say that the provisions of this bill don't have

         25  any impact on that problem. The provisions of this
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          2  bill are basic notification and I think the point

          3  that we were trying to make, and I think that

          4  Buildings was trying to make as well, was that all

          5  of the points of communication that the bill

          6  requires, would impose, is already happening.  At

          7  the time of calendaring, Buildings is put on notice

          8  because the Buildings Department computer is changed

          9  by us when we designate it.  The Buildings

         10  Department computer is changed by us.  They apprise

         11  us of permit applications that are received on

         12  calendared buildings.  So that happens.

         13                 The problem that I think you're

         14  referring to, and it's a real problem, that

         15  periodically  --  I wouldn't even know how to define

         16  the scope of the problem.  It doesn't happen very

         17  often, but it happens where all of sudden we'll

         18  learn that the L is dropped off of a property, or

         19  someone will have a permit and they'll pull the

         20  permit and you'll say well how did that happen?

         21  We'll get a complaint about illegal work, and we'll

         22  go out there. There owner will say I don't know what

         23  you're talking about.  I pulled this permit.  Here

         24  it is.  It doesn't say landmark, and it won't.  And

         25  it's in the Greenwich Village District which has

                                                            83

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  been designated for 30 years.  It's unacceptable.

          3  It happens on occasion.  I don't know how it

          4  happens.

          5                 Once it happens, we go in and we put

          6  the L back in.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Right.  So if you

          8  guys, and I believe that you're entering this data

          9  and you're doing your part, and so again I'll say,

         10  and I don't mean to direct my  --  I think at the

         11  beginning I apologize if I directed some of my

         12  frustration towards you that really should be

         13  directed towards the Buildings Department.  If

         14  they're not maintaining their database properly  --

         15  You guys work very hard and we all here on this

         16  Committee work very hard to designate properties and

         17  we do that for a reason, and if that's not being

         18  respected by the Department of Buildings then that's

         19  completely unacceptable.  I mean when I read through

         20  their letter it seems mostly they want to do more

         21  work, that they don't want their inspectors to have

         22  to continue to go off their inspection routes on

         23  their Stop Work Order Patrol.  They don't want to

         24  have to determine whether the permit holder has

         25  performed substantial construction.  They don't want
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          2  to take the time to do the work that we are

          3  suggesting that they do.  So that's that I guess,

          4  and they're not really speak to that.

          5                 The issue that they raise with Local

          6  Law 11 is one that we could discuss with them if

          7  they were here, but they are not here.  So with

          8  that, thank you very much for taking the time to

          9  testify.

         10                 MR. SILBERMAN: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: The next speakers

         12  will be Susan Nial, Simeon Bankoff and Andrew

         13  Berman.

         14                 Please introduce yourself.

         15                 MS. NIAL: My name is Susan Nial, and

         16  I'm here to support the passage of bill 542.  Before

         17  I begin my remarks, I'd like to point out that I've

         18  also handed up a statement from Landmark West that

         19  they ask that I put into the record for them.

         20                 I'm glad that I was here for the

         21  whole of this hearing because I was listening about

         22  the Landmarks Preservation Commission and their

         23  interaction with the Department of Buildings, and I

         24  thought I was back in wonderland because my

         25  experience has not been that there is communication
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          2  and quite frankly the entry of a C and the dropping

          3  of an L from a database, in my mind, doesn't define

          4  communication.  So I would ask you to consider

          5  whether or not data entries are communication and

          6  suggest that these two departments of the City

          7  should actually communicate person to person so that

          8  they actually aren't relying on a database.

          9                 Anyway, last year, I watched in

         10  disbelief as the Dakota Stables was being dismantled

         11  just days before the hearing on its possible

         12  designation as an historic landmark.  We called

         13  Landmarks Preservation Commission, and we called the

         14  Department of Buildings, but the destruction

         15  continued.  Jackhammers chiseled away at the

         16  signature brick work and the decorative cornice was

         17  removed and smashed.  This was not work that was

         18  going on.  Rather, it was work that, at least timing

         19  wise, seemed to be initiated as a result of the

         20  calendaring of the building for historic

         21  designation.  Under the guise of maintenance, the

         22  building was dismantled and a historic landmark was

         23  lost forever.

         24                 At the hearing by the Landmarks

         25  Preservation Commission, the members bemoaned their
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          2  importance, and one member even called what happened

          3  with the Dakota Stables cultural vandalism.  What

          4  could they do?  Whether or not the Landmarks

          5  Preservation Commission had the power to save the

          6  Dakota is now only, unfortunately, an academic

          7  argument.  However, this legislation before you will

          8  clearly and unequivocally give the Landmarks

          9  Preservation Commission the power to do something.

         10  As a result, they will not be able to hide behind a

         11  claim of impotence next time.

         12                 When I sat here and listened to the

         13  comments that the representative of Landmarks

         14  Commission, it only reinforced my belief that the

         15  Landmarks Preservation Commission wishes to remain

         16  impotent so that it in fact can hide behind that

         17  inability and not have to take responsibility for

         18  this type of cultural vandalism.

         19                 Unfortunately, Councilman Lappin, I

         20  was not surprised because when you turn down

         21  $500,000 dollars in increased budget and only ask

         22  for $300,000 dollars something else is going on

         23  besides deciding that you want to have power to do

         24  the work that you need to do.

         25                 Now no one sitting here is going to
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          2  say that 542 is a perfect bill.  Nothing is ever

          3  perfect, and I certainly would like to see, for

          4  example, fines for owners who do what was done to

          5  the Dakota Stables, and the discretion for the

          6  Department of Buildings to reinstate a permit if a

          7  certain amount of money is spent by the builder

          8  leaves me queasy, but I would suggest to you that

          9  the perfect should never be the enemy of the good.

         10  This bill is a good step.  The Landmarks

         11  Preservation Commission should not be allowed to

         12  delay the passage of this good step in order to

         13  fiddle while New York burns.  We should force the

         14  Department of Buildings to do the work that they

         15  need to do.

         16                 I would ask you to pass this bill to

         17  slow the cultural vandalism that's going on, and I

         18  would thank you very much for holding this hearing.

         19  I thank all the supporters and all the sponsors of

         20  this bill for stepping forward and recognizing that

         21  this is a problem.  It's not limited.  It is going

         22  to grow as development continues a pace in our

         23  historic areas.  Thank you very much.

         24                 MR. BERMAN: Thank you.  My name is

         25  Andrew Berman. I'm the Executive Director of the
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          2  Greenwich Village Society for Historic Preservation.

          3    Good afternoon, and I want to thank you for the

          4  opportunity to testify today in support of Intro

          5  542.  I wish to thank Council Member Mendez for

          6  introducing this bill, Council Member Lappin for co-

          7  sponsoring it and holding today's hearing, and all

          8  the bills sponsors for their support of this

          9  measure.

         10                 If enacted, this bill would take

         11  important steps towards addressing a vexing problem

         12  and a loophole in the Landmarks Law.  As you know,

         13  currently property owners can with as little as an

         14  open but unused work permit prevent the Landmarks

         15  Preservation Commission from moving forward with

         16  designation of a structure, or deface or destroy a

         17  structure which has been landmarked.  It is a trick

         18  all to well known by unscrupulous landlords and too

         19  commonly used.  With an outstanding permit which can

         20  be renewed and renewed for years without any use, an

         21  owner can prevent the LPC from acting because they

         22  can threaten to demolish or radically alter the

         23  building with their outstanding permits in spite of

         24  landmark designation.  Thus making designation

         25  potentially pointless.
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          2                 Alternately, if the permits are for

          3  more minor work which the Commission feels does not

          4  necessarily prevent them from designating, the owner

          5  may choose to go ahead and deface the property with

          6  the outstanding permits out of spite or out of a

          7  desire to follow through on a threat intended to

          8  prevent designation.

          9                 We have seen this happen in just the

         10  past year or two on the East Side and in East

         11  Village, and it is a shameful circumvention of the

         12  intention of the Landmarks Law.  Intro 542 will help

         13  address this problem.  Much as owners lose existing

         14  building permits when new zoning is enacted unless

         15  they can show a substantial expenditure or

         16  completion of work, owners of landmarked properties

         17  should also lose their outstanding permits unless

         18  they can show work has been substantially completed.

         19                 We, of course, understand the need to

         20  be fair to property owners and those who in good

         21  faith sought building permits for work they needed

         22  or wished to do and have already undertaken

         23  substantial work.  This bill would, as we understand

         24  it, allow them to complete that work.  However, it

         25  would seem that this bill would help prevent cases
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          2  of bad faith players who simply got permits in order

          3  to thwart landmark designation.

          4                 The need for this bill is much more

          5  than theoretical.  In addition to the high profile

          6  cases we all know about, this loophole is exploited

          7  by some property owners in a smaller, but

          8  nevertheless equally pernicious way.

          9                 In recent years, the Greenwich

         10  Village Society has fought hard for modest historic

         11  districts designations or extensions which have gone

         12  into effect in the Meat Packing District, the far

         13  West Village and NoHo.  I honestly could not even

         14  count the number of owners who months, or even

         15  years, after designation took effect undertook

         16  radical alterations to their property, shearing off

         17  all ornament, stuccoing over facades, adding

         18  enormous billboards, based upon permits they had

         19  before designation, but never acted upon.  I going

         20  to disagree slightly with Mr. Silberman's testimony

         21  here.  It is a fairly pervasive problem.  In our

         22  small districts, we saw this happen several times.

         23  This not only degrades the very qualities which

         24  historic district designation has intended to

         25  preserve, but it also sends a terrible message to
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          2  adjacent property owners that if they had been

          3  similarly clever, they could have circumvented the

          4  restrictions of landmark designation placed upon

          5  them.

          6                 In some cases, other property owners

          7  simply mistake these post- designation radical

          8  alterations by their neighbors as an indication that

          9  landmark designation simply does not have any teeth,

         10  and can be ignored.  Thus creating an entirely new

         11  set of problems.

         12                 Because of these very real and

         13  ongoing problems which Intro 542 can help address, I

         14  urge the City Council to pass this piece of

         15  legislation.

         16                 Finally, in closing I do want to say

         17  that I think that some of the issues that were

         18  raised by the representative of the LPC are

         19  legitimate ones, and it's an issue of figuring out a

         20  balance.  It's very clear that this bill would help

         21  in many ways. I think we need to look at the ways in

         22  which it's possible that an owner might move forward

         23  more quickly than they would have otherwise, but

         24  it's undeniable that we are seeing this problem

         25  happen time and time again, and obviously this bill
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          2  would help address it.

          3                 Finally, I just want to say on the

          4  BIS problem, which has been discussed, whether or

          5  not this bill would help address it, it was 17

          6  percent of the cases throughout the City's largest

          7  historic district as well as several other smaller

          8  districts that we saw that landmarks were not marked

          9  as such in BIS.  So, as has been commented on, and I

         10  know Council Member Lappin has really taken a very

         11  serious look at it, it is a big problem and one that

         12  does need to be addressed.

         13                 MR. BANKOFF: Good afternoon, Council

         14  Members. Simeon Bankoff, Historic Districts Council.

         15                 First of all, I would like to thank

         16  Council Member Mendez for her introduction of this

         17  bill, and Council Member Lappin for bringing it

         18  forward, and really the Council's strong leadership

         19  on this important issue.

         20                 Ms. Nial stole my thunder by using

         21  the phrase we cannot let the perfect be the enemy of

         22  the good.  Yes, this bill in front of us does not

         23  solve every problem that we are dealing with.

         24  However, it is a serious problem that is does

         25  address.  I believe that this bill does work to
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          2  really empower the Landmarks Commission to do its

          3  job to protect the landmarks of the City.  That's

          4  why I call it the Landmarks Protection Bill because

          5  when some is a landmark you assume it's protected.

          6  Yet, as we've seen time and time again, and

          7  unfortunately more and more often under the current

          8  development climate that we're dealing with and

          9  which all the Council Members are familiar with

         10  various examples, but I've given you colored

         11  illustrations just to show that buildings that we

         12  had thought were safe actually aren't because people

         13  have been, in certain cases, acting on permits that

         14  should have been withdrawn once designation.

         15                 Now we're talking about the bill as

         16  written, and I do have suggestions I'm going to be

         17  forwarding along, suggestions where I think it could

         18  be strengthened, but the bill as written is talking

         19  about landmark designation which is the end process

         20  of a very long and serious municipal decision.  At

         21  that point, I think that it is only fair and

         22  reasonable to say that one City agency should accede

         23  to another.  People are not given building permits

         24  by God.  It's not a God- given right.  It's a

         25  situation where things change.  Zoning changes, and
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          2  if somebody has not acted on a building permit and

          3  the zoning changes then that building permit is no

          4  longer valid.  I think this is a completely

          5  analogous example.

          6                 Some suggestions I could say, and I

          7  love to continue our discussions, and I'd like to

          8  thank Council Member Mendez for her reaching out to

          9  the advocates about this, were with regard to the

         10  calendaring of historic districts or historic

         11  properties, I would love to see a situation where

         12  the Department of Buildings would audit existing

         13  permits just to make sure that the permits have

         14  actually been issued correctly.

         15                 One problem, and this is beyond the

         16  scope of this legislation to deal with, is the fact

         17  that windows can be altered on buildings without any

         18  kind of permit and fenestration is all too often one

         19  of the most defining characters of a building.  You

         20  can have situations where historic windows will get

         21  stripped of a building even under consideration for

         22  landmark status.

         23                 But those aside, and a few other

         24  things aside, I really do feel that this actually

         25  empowers more transparency for the City.  There was
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          2  a situation a few years ago where the Landmarks

          3  Commission started a survey for Staten Island of

          4  potential historic resources in Staten Island, and

          5  that survey has remained secret because of this fear

          6  that builders, people, owners will find out that

          7  their building is under consideration for landmark

          8  status and they will strip it.  Now that's always a

          9  concern.  However, the fact is that we end up in

         10  this kind of climate of fear and climate of secrecy

         11  where we know there's a survey, but we don't know

         12  what's going on and the owners become paranoid.

         13  People who have old properties say well maybe I'm on

         14  the survey.  Maybe I'm not on the survey.  People

         15  have been wandering around looking at things, and I

         16  hear that when I go to the communities.  They say

         17  what's going on?  We don't know what's going on, and

         18  I think that this actually a very big move for

         19  transparency.

         20                 I'm look forward to seeing the

         21  Landmarks Commission's statement.  I didn't really

         22  know what their viewpoint on it was.  I found it

         23  very interesting.  I will not go through it point by

         24  point.  Although the urge is there.  I will state,

         25  however, on the last page here of  --  It's the
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          2  ASPCA building which is at 50 Madison Avenue.  I

          3  believe that's in Council Member Mendez' district.

          4  It's might be in Council Member Garodnick's. I'm not

          5  positive.  I think that's where the district line

          6  goes one to another.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: It might be

          8  the Speaker.  She and I share Madison Avenue.

          9                 MR. BANKOFF: There was the ASPCA

         10  building right on the corner of Madison Square Park,

         11  and it was originally part of the Madison Square

         12  North Historic District, and when the Landmarks

         13  Commission had the owners meeting beforehand the

         14  owners said thank you very much, and then self-

         15  certified a seven- story addition for the building.

         16  The building is then cut out of the calendared

         17  district, which happened literally a week and half,

         18  two weeks later.  Then Chair Sherida Paulsen

         19  explained to the New York Times in this that if it's

         20  within the historic district, it would look like

         21  something we approved.  It's confusing to applicants

         22  to see new work and assume that's the kind of work

         23  they can do.  I submit that is this legislation was

         24  passed, we would not have that situation.  Thank you

         25  very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you for

          3  taking the time to testify.

          4                 The next panel is Alison Franks from

          5  the East Village Community Coalition, Michael Rosen

          6  from the same organization and Veronica Conant who

          7  we heard from earlier today.

          8                 Please introduce yourself and begin.

          9                 MS. FRANKS: Good morning.  My name is

         10  Alison Franks. I'm the Managing Director of the East

         11  Village Community Coalition, and on behalf of my

         12  organization and the community member that we

         13  represent, I'm here to support and to urge you to

         14  pass Intro 542.

         15                 We want to thank Council Member

         16  Mendez for being an incredible advocate for our

         17  organization and our community, and Chairperson

         18  Lapping for being an incredible advocate for this

         19  issue.

         20                 The East Village Community Coalition

         21  works to preserve and protect the architectural and

         22  cultural fabric of our historic neighborhood.  Our

         23  work to save the character of the East Village began

         24  several years ago with our campaign to stop the

         25  destruction of old P.S. 64 on East 9th Street.  This
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          2  work has now expanded to other sites in our

          3  neighborhood because the current law allows

          4  developers to use previously obtained permits from

          5  the Department of Buildings even after receiving

          6  landmarked status.  Our work to save P.S. 64, which

          7  achieved landmark status in 2006, now involves

          8  lawyers and court battles and has become very costly

          9  to the organization and to the neighborhood.

         10                 Under Intro 542, once a building is

         11  landmarked any and all previous building permits

         12  issued by the Department of Buildings would be

         13  suspended thereby saving the building from the

         14  dangerous loophole that could destroy it despite its

         15  landmark status.

         16                 Too frequently, and we experience

         17  this ourselves with old P.S. 64, owners who fail to

         18  do work on the building prior to the landmark status

         19  will take advantage of the current loophole in the

         20  law that allows owners to act on permits obtained

         21  before landmark status to the detriment of our

         22  neighborhood.

         23                 This legislation would help preserve

         24  buildings that lend tremendous historic value and

         25  character to our neighborhoods, and if these
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          2  buildings are meaningful enough to landmark, then we

          3  ought to protect them from the owners who intend to

          4  destroy them.

          5                 As I'm sure you're all aware, we're

          6  losing much of the feel and architecture that makes

          7  New York a unique place to live and to visit.  Intro

          8  542 will help us as a community organization

          9  continue to protect and preserve neighborhoods and

         10  buildings that make New York New York, and will

         11  enable the City Council and the Landmarks Commission

         12  to protect these historic treasures.  Thank you for

         13  your time, and I urge you to pass Intro 542.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you.  If

         15  the next person on the panel can identify their self

         16  for the record and give their testimony.

         17                 MR. ROSEN: The next person on the

         18  panel is Michael Rosen from the East Village

         19  Community Coalition.  I was hoping it was going to

         20  be warmer upfront where you guys sit than it is in

         21  the back, but sadly it's not.  So if I start

         22  shivering, please forgive me.

         23                 I was one of the four litigants in an

         24  effort right before the designation committee

         25  hearings for old P.S. 64, Farmer Charras, where we
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          2  sued the current owner to stop the stripping of the

          3  building the day before the designation hearings

          4  were supposed to begin.  So this issue is very dear

          5  to me and the other people in our organization.

          6                 We're a young country.  We're a young

          7  nation. Jubilant.  Consumed by beautiful optimism.

          8  When I look up at old P.S. 64, Farmer Charras, now

          9  an individual landmark of the City of New York and I

         10  see the irreplaceable architectural detail ripped

         11  from the facade after landmark designation because a

         12  permit for such destruction was issued prior to

         13  designation, and I see nine shredded tarps open to

         14  raw brick exposed to snow and rain, and the slow

         15  destruction of this building from what I believe is

         16  intended neglect, I realize we are also sometimes

         17  sweetly naive.  Because regardless of pretense, the

         18  existing system is obviously broken, and it's not a

         19  question of whether Intro 542 should become law

         20  because sophistication and civility demand that it

         21  does.

         22                 We in the East Village Community

         23  Coalition thank Rosie Mendez, our City Council

         24  Member Jessica Lappin, always supportive of wise

         25  landmark initiatives, and the other sponsors of this
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          2  bill, and urge that it be passed.  Thank you.

          3                 MS. CONANT: I'm Veronica Conant,

          4  President of the West 54- 56 Block Association in

          5  the Preservation Subdistrict of the Special Midtown

          6  District on West 54th, 55th, and 56th Streets

          7  between Fifth and Sixth Avenues.  I'm here today to

          8  provide testimony on behalf of the association in

          9  support of Intro 542 regarding improving

         10  communication between the Department of Buildings

         11  and the Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         12                 When a building under consideration

         13  for designation is considered as a landmark, this

         14  bill would give LPC more control and would improve

         15  the function of the LPC to preserve buildings.

         16                 As mentioned in our earlier testimony

         17  today, last year we lost four magnificent townhouses

         18  at 31, 33, 35 and 37 West 56th Street in the

         19  Preservation Subdistricts.  These townhouses had

         20  been identified in 1979 as potential landmarks, and

         21  then in 2005, we applied for landmark designation

         22  for these.  LPC had not responded to us at that

         23  point at which they got sold, and the new developer

         24  applied for a simple facade demolition, which is

         25  step one of the standard procedure to raze
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          2  buildings.  So I sort of want to bring your

          3  attention to the fact that applying for simple

          4  facade demolition  --  It's not every construction.

          5  You discussed all kinds of construction, but I think

          6  a rail yard addition or inside alteration they are

          7  different.  However, a simple facade alteration

          8  permit is what we are deeply concerned about because

          9  that is what they had applied for, and even though

         10  we involved all our officials to try to stop the

         11  damage to the facades of this buildings, we were

         12  unable to do it because the LPC told us that DOB

         13  permits trumped LPC permits.  So you see this is

         14  really a shortcoming of this whole system that LPC

         15  really is not able to preserve the buildings even if

         16  they want to and that's why we support this bill

         17  even though it doesn't go far enough for what we

         18  would need, but we believe that this would be an

         19  important first step in going in the direction of

         20  helping to strengthen the function of the Landmarks

         21  Preservation Commission.

         22                 Now the other part of it is  --  So

         23  what would be really good is  --  Because the

         24  Building Information System is already in place, it

         25  would be really good to go beyond what everybody
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          2  else has said about already something being marked

          3  as landmarked or having been calendared for

          4  landmarking, it would be really good to have some

          5  kind of a system to have in place all those people

          6  that we find request for evaluation.  So when a

          7  request for evaluation for a building has already

          8  been applied, it could be so simply added to the

          9  Building Information System with some kind of a

         10  marking.  So that at least when the Department of

         11  Building wants to do something and gets a permit for

         12  a simple facade alteration.  Somehow I wish you

         13  would add to this bill in some way to strengthen the

         14  bill and then the facade alteration permit could be

         15  looked at a little bit more strictly because usually

         16  step one is facade alteration permits.  Step two,

         17  destroy the facade as soon as possible.

         18                 When we went to the Landmarks

         19  Preservation Commission and tried to save these

         20  buildings, no damage had been done to the buildings

         21  yet we were unable to save it.  All our public

         22  officials were working with us on this.  So somehow

         23  that step needs to be changed.  So allow LPC to have

         24  precedence over the DOB permits.  This is really

         25  what we want to ask.
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          2                 I just want to list for you step one

          3  is apply for a simple facade alteration permit.  It

          4  seems very simple and nothing. Step two, they

          5  destroy the facade as fast as possible.  Step three,

          6  demolish the entire building because the facade has

          7  already been destroyed.  Then they apply for the

          8  demolition permit and demolish the building, and

          9  step four is apply for building a new building.

         10                 I have seen it now in our three

         11  blocks.  We are seeing it over and over and over

         12  again.  They haven't all gone through, and we are

         13  trying to save them, but we experienced it several

         14  times and it seems a major weakness of the system as

         15  it is. So it would be really important if somehow

         16  there could be better communication.  I would really

         17  appreciate what you are trying to do with improving

         18  the communication between the two departments, but

         19  somehow make it even stronger by doing something the

         20  early facade alteration permits.  I don't know if

         21  you can do that.

         22                 In Hungary  --  I just want to end

         23  it.  I'm Hungarian.  Okay?  In Hungary, we had a

         24  war, and the war destroyed so many beautiful

         25  buildings you wouldn't believe, and what happened
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          2  after the war?  The country painstakingly, over many

          3  years, restored some of the really fabulous

          4  buildings, and that is why people go to Budapest,

          5  not for the new buildings, but for the old

          6  buildings.  They beautifully restored them.  So

          7  somehow would it be possible  --  I don't know if

          8  you can do it in this bill, but I want to say if

          9  somehow if somebody destroys willfully, make them

         10  restore it as it is.  I don't know if that could be

         11  done.  Because they could be perfectly well

         12  restored.  It's not that they couldn't.  Even when

         13  we were at that point, we just simply asked. When

         14  they destroyed the facade, we asked them please

         15  restore the facade as it was before, and we were

         16  unable to do that.  So somehow if you could include

         17  that in this  --  just food for thought.  It is

         18  perfectly possible to restore things to have them

         19  back as good as new.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you for

         21  your suggestions. Thank you.

         22                 MS. CONANT: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We do have

         24  somebody signed up to testify in opposition, Mr.

         25  Slattery from the Real Estate Board of New York, and
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          2  then he'll be followed by the final group, which

          3  will be Laura Manville, Bill Shea, Joy Kieras and

          4  Elizabeth McCracken.

          5                 MR. SLATTERY: Good afternoon.  I'm

          6  Michael Slattery, Real Estate Board of New York.

          7  We're here to present some concerns with this bill.

          8  A building permit is a critical step in the

          9  development process whether it's new construction or

         10  renovation. It provides a level of assurance to

         11  lenders, tenants, owners that a building plans can

         12  proceed.  To create such an exception that strikes

         13  at the heart of this process, which this bill does,

         14  to hit this process that many people rely on, I

         15  think will have a chilling effect and impact on a

         16  well established building process.

         17                 Let me raise a couple of concerns.

         18  One is that this bill doesn't address the process

         19  that's already in place, which is the Notice of

         20  Review procedure whereby LPC staff review DOB

         21  permits and either sign- off on the permit that it

         22  doesn't impact the landmark, or that it is just

         23  silent on that implying the same kind of process.

         24  Examples of that type of permit would be tenant work

         25  that doesn't alter the facade at all.  It seems to
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          2  me that this bill doesn't address that issue, and

          3  would throw into chaos work that could be critical

          4  for the operation of a building that really doesn't

          5  alter or impact the landmark status or the quality

          6  of the building as well.

          7                 I recognize the issues that are

          8  raised here that are the concern and that this bill

          9  tries to address, but let me kind of express a

         10  concern from an owner's perspective.  An owner buys

         11  a site, or tries to assemble a site.  It may take

         12  years, may cost money, and they slowly put together

         13  a site.  He puts together financing.  He's ready to

         14  proceed, and low and behold an issue arises that

         15  this could be a potential landmark on this site.

         16  What happens is that then all of sudden the

         17  preservation network start emailing, sends letters

         18  to Council Members, sends members to its

         19  constituency and before we know it, we're pushing

         20  for a calendaring.  As Mark Silberman said, that

         21  process for individual buildings can be accelerated.

         22    So all of a sudden a process that may have gone on

         23  for a couple of years with no recognition that there

         24  was any landmark property involved is all of a

         25  sudden halted and jeopardized because of this
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          2  process.

          3                 Despite what was said here, I believe

          4  the Dakota Stables is an example of that.  Here's a

          5  building that, in part, was looked at numerous

          6  times, was not thought to be of landmark quality and

          7  yet that process is being held up as being an

          8  example of why this bill is needed.

          9                 Those, I think, are the kind of

         10  things that developers fear the most, and this is

         11  not the same thing, as someone has said, as the

         12  zoning process.  A zoning process, as you well know,

         13  is a very lengthy process, is a very deliberative

         14  process.  It goes through URLURP.  It takes six

         15  months, and at the end of that process, there are

         16  very clear standards as to what constitutes vesting.

         17                 One of the concerns, obviously, with

         18  this bill is that there's no definition of what

         19  constitutes substantial government expenditure or

         20  substantial construction.  I would venture to say

         21  that certainly acquisition costs which could be

         22  significant should constitute part of that

         23  substantial expenditure certainly when this was done

         24  in anticipation of a development moving forward.

         25                 In addition, I think leaving this at
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          2  the sole discretion of the Buildings Department is

          3  questionable.  They may not be the right entity to

          4  do that, and from what I've been hearing, even the

          5  preservationists are not happy with Buildings

          6  Department and how it operates.  If their not happy

          7  with it, I don't think we can be happy with it as a

          8  determination in this regard.

          9                 Also, there is no time limit set for

         10  the determination by the Department of Buildings,

         11  and I think the other question is, as was eluded to,

         12  what happens when work is stopped in the middle of

         13  the process.  What happens to this incomplete work?

         14  Does this pose safety questions, or are there any

         15  other impacts that may need to be considered?

         16                 Also, I would suggest as a process is

         17  that before we disrupt a project, there should be at

         18  least some opportunity before we suspend a permit to

         19  give the applicant or the owner the opportunity to

         20  demonstrate that he's met the substantial

         21  expenditure or substantial renovation test prior to

         22  pulling a permit.

         23                 As some of our members have said, and

         24  I guess I would concur with the Landmarks

         25  representative that this bill will in some
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          2  accelerate activity on buildings that would not have

          3  otherwise undergone renovation work in order to be

          4  able to vest, in order to be able to secure that

          5  right.  I think this will push people to move

          6  forward to protect their interests.

          7                 The other thing is, as I mentioned, I

          8  do question that this bill will force and put

          9  pressure on Landmarks to act more hastily than they

         10  would have otherwise, and I would question whether

         11  that does in some ways slightly erode the integrity

         12  of the landmark designation.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I wanted to

         14  discuss some of the issues that you raise, and I'll

         15  start with the last one first. From my perspective,

         16  having the Landmarks Commission speed up the process

         17  or turn to a property that seems in peril perhaps

         18  before another property that might be is not a bad

         19  thing.

         20                 MR. SLATTERY: I'm not saying that it

         21  is a bad thing. I'm just saying that once you move

         22  quickly and put pressure on someone to act and there

         23  are other pressures out there, I think it does raise

         24  questions about the quality of that judgement.  I'm

         25  not here to suggest that they have not shown sound
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          2  judgement and thoughtful analysis when they've done

          3  that, but this would be a new factor here, and I

          4  question whether it doesn't have an impact on the

          5  quality.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I don't think it

          7  would.  I think it would be a good thing in terms of

          8  speeding up the process if there were particular

          9  properties that were in danger.

         10                 I wanted to go through  --  You

         11  mentioned that the bill doesn't set out time limits

         12  which is a fair point in terms of a DOB

         13  determination.  What would you suggest as a

         14  reasonable time limit?

         15                 MR. SLATTERY: I can't say.  I mean I

         16  think it depends upon the nature of the process.  I

         17  know I eluded to it before is that in historic

         18  districts there may be a lot of properties being

         19  able to make that determination of the many permits

         20   --  Without looking at that more closely, I just

         21  don't have an answer for you at that moment.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay, so we're

         23  not sure what the time limit would be, but that's an

         24  issue in terms of giving DOB sort of too much

         25  discretion because they could take months and months
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          2  and months.  They could take years potentially, and

          3  that's not fair to the owner, that you would like to

          4  have a decision made within a reasonable time frame.

          5                 MR. SLATTERY: And suggesting also

          6  perhaps that decision be made before the permit is

          7  pulled.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Definition on

          9  substantial construction, you know there has been a

         10  little discussion today about tying that to the

         11  zoning code.  Do you feel that that's an acceptable

         12  definition of substantial construction?

         13                 MR. SLATTERY: That's certainly one

         14  that has worked. Typically, we have supported where

         15  there has been precedent so that people know what

         16  they need to do.  I think that's certainly the

         17  start.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: You raised

         19  something at the beginning.  You said that LPC can

         20  sign- off on permits and so this bill doesn't really

         21  discuss that.  I think the issue is though right now

         22  after a bill is designated, LPC gets involved.

         23  Prior to designation, there isn't really a

         24  discussion, and I think that's really what we're

         25  trying to get to.  I think that's sort of the heart
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          2  of this bill is if you're a property owner and you

          3  own a property on 57th Street, the chances of you

          4  being landmarked probably aren't very high.  I mean

          5  most properties in the City are not going to be

          6  landmarked.  So you go to the Buildings Department,

          7  you get your permit, you go about your merry way.  I

          8  think the issue is for the fewer properties that do

          9  have an architectural or historical or cultural

         10  significance before they have protection from the

         11  Landmarks Commission if they go out and they get

         12  permits without any discussion with LPC because they

         13  wouldn't have any discussions with LPC.  So that's

         14  sort of the whole point of this is to create a

         15  mechanism so that in the instances where LPC is not

         16  involved, but then does come along and designate

         17  that we can revoke some of these permits.

         18                 MR. SLATTERY: What I'm suggesting is

         19  that there is a process in place where owners

         20  effectively have done that, and now what this bill

         21  would basically do would be to suspend those permits

         22  which basically have had review.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: But only

         24  Buildings Department review right now if the bill is

         25  not enacted.  The owner is not having any

                                                            114

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  discussions with LPC if it's not designated or

          3  calendared.  They're only talking to Buildings.

          4                 MR. SLATTERY: It's my understanding

          5  that there is a procedure in place where LPC and DOB

          6  talk about work that may be done, and that there is

          7  some sign- off that that work would not in some ways

          8  jeopardize the quality of the building for example

          9  if it's calendared.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Right.  I guess

         11  the point is that only happens once the building has

         12  been calendared, once there is some protection in

         13  place, and what we're trying to address here is

         14  these buildings where they haven't been calendared

         15  and permits have been obtained, and then later on

         16  they are calendared or designated. To create exactly

         17  the kind of dialogue that had not existed.

         18                 MR. SLATTERY: If you've been

         19  calendared and you got a building permit and it's

         20  been approved for work, and then the building is

         21  designated, I think this bill suspends that permit.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I see what you're

         23  saying.  So your talking about a specific scenario

         24  where you've already been calendared  --

         25                 MR. SLATTERY: You've done your
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          2  review.  The work is not in jeopardy.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I see.  You've

          4  obtained your permit after calendaring, but before

          5  designation.  Okay.  That's something to think

          6  about.

          7                 Council Member Mendez, do you have

          8  any questions?

          9                 Okay.  Thank you.

         10                 MR. SLATTERY: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: The final panel,

         12  Bill Shea, Joy Kieras, Elizabeth McCracken and Laura

         13  Manville.

         14                 Just introduce yourself for the

         15  record.

         16                 MR. SHEA: Bill Shea, 54- 55th Street

         17  Block Association.  As my cohort said, a very small

         18  three- block Midtown area that's probably 600 or 700

         19  feet by 400 feet.  That sounds like maybe two

         20  football fields, and in it, we have had all of the

         21  experiences that this law addresses.

         22                 We've had the experience of 54th

         23  Street, MOMA knocking down the City Athletic Club

         24  which was essentially built for people of the Jewish

         25  persuasion who were not allowed into the other
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          2  places in the 1890's, knocked down, gone and fast.

          3                 Four places on 56th Street that were

          4  a hundred years old that were built by the wealthy

          5  so therefore they have the building, the thickness,

          6  the desirability and the look of the joints that we

          7  go to Europe to see in London, in Paris, in Rome, in

          8  Budapest, anywhere else, gone.  And what's gone to

          9  be replaced? More glass.

         10                 We have four buildings that are under

         11  a process of being destroyed after they get the

         12  three tenants out of there who are rent- controlled,

         13  and they are not doing very well at it so far. When

         14  that's gone, we'll have four old turn- of- the-

         15  century middle income buildings replaced by another

         16  glass building.

         17                 We have the Goldman family --  This

         18  is three blocks remember.  We have the Goldman

         19  family trying to put together a piece of about six

         20  homes to knock down and put up another piece of

         21  glass.

         22                 We have someone fronting as an

         23  Italian developer, which didn't sound right to me,

         24  but asking the people who own the buildings on 54th

         25  Street if they'd sell their air rights so on 55th
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          2  Street they could knock down a place and put up

          3  something that again would be more glass.

          4                 What's the story?  Knock them down.

          5  What's the big way?  Facade renovation.  You know

          6  that's like saying I'm slightly pregnant.  It

          7  doesn't work.  They knock them down by destroying

          8  them, by using  --  What did the gentlemen call it?

          9  Benign neglect with an intent to destroy.  They go

         10  to the Buildings Department. There is no

         11  transparency.  There is no disclosure.  You don't

         12  know what they're doing.  There is no need to

         13  notice.  If I get sued, I have to answer in 20 days.

         14    I think if I make a motion, and I could be wrong,

         15  I think I have to answer in 13 days.  We don't even

         16  get that.  The entire process has no transparency,

         17  no need to notice and no need to have another person

         18  stand up and say hey.  Wait a minute.  Who are we

         19  talking about when we're talking about this? Because

         20  I'm going to turn the whole megaphone around and

         21  it's not the City Council.  It's the lawyers.  What

         22  does a real estate lawyer do for a living?  Well

         23  they don't go home and call their wives and say

         24  honey we bought a new house.  They work for big

         25  developers, and as lawyers, the earn millions in
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          2  fees by going around  --  let's call them loopholes

          3  for lack of a better word  -- and as they go through

          4  the loopholes, buildings get knocked down and other

          5  ones get put up.

          6                 We hope that for our future we're

          7  going to save some of these buildings so that the

          8  future tenants, the future workers, the future

          9  tourists see something of New York that was as

         10  opposed to well I guess if I were wacky I'd probably

         11  say a Bladerunner addition of New York if anyone

         12  remembers the Harrison Ford movie. It's was pretty

         13  dismal.  What we're looking at, and what you're bill

         14  is addressing is transparency, time of notice and

         15  full disclosure.  I said it twice because I won't

         16  want to miss the point of transparency.

         17                 I will give you another example.

         18  MOMA decided that they wanted to do something and

         19  change some parts of some buildings that they are

         20  going to theoretically construct.  So in a step kind

         21  of Pacman bite, they had a hearing before the City

         22  Planning Commission that, of course, they disclosed

         23  to us two business days before the hearing.  These

         24  are not unusual.  When lawyers get paid millions,

         25  they don't do it to go home and buy a house.  They
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          2  do it because they are performing a service for

          3  their real estate developers.  So the process at the

          4  other end is the lawyers, and they're not being bad.

          5    They're just doing their job, and the process at

          6  the legislative end is to protect whatever the

          7  people choose to protect, which would be

          8  preservation.

          9                 So I have to thank all those

         10  preservationists before me.  Mr. Berman, I have to

         11  thank  --  in Historical Districts.  I have to thank

         12  anybody I missed.  I have to thank you Councilman

         13  Mendez.  I have to thank my guy on the Council, Dan

         14  Garodnick.  I have to thank all of the Committee

         15  Members and the Land Use Commissions because your

         16  process stands between 150 years from now and what

         17  we will see or leaving something somewhere every

         18  once in a while around the City of Manhattan and

         19  around the City of New York.  You've got to leave

         20  something there.  I mean it's what we did, and I

         21  understand, and I've read enough books, and I've got

         22  enough gray hair to understand the process that New

         23  York was the city that was built out of nothing into

         24  something and then out of knocking this to put up

         25  that and everything else, but how would you feel if
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          2  the Empire State Building were knocked down?  Hey

          3  what are they doing?  How did you feel  --  Well

          4  none of you could feel it, but I did  --  when they

          5  knocked down Penn Station?  Well at least the guy

          6  who owned it was broke.  The Pennsylvania Railroad

          7  was busted.  New York City, I think it was, was

          8  bust.  So they knocked down Penn Station.  How would

          9  you feel if they actually won and knocked down Grand

         10  Central Station?  All of these pieces have a part,

         11  and I'm yelling about Manhattan as opposed to the

         12  other four boroughs only because Manhattan was where

         13  the tourists would, should and could come.  The

         14  people who are working would, should and could come.

         15                 I'll give you another twist.  Where

         16  do the taxes really go?  They don't come here.  They

         17  don't go to New York City. They don't go to New York

         18  State.  They're corporations that are billed in

         19  other countries, other jurisdictions, other states

         20  and all those profits get out of here.  They build

         21  here, they take it out of here, they pay some taxes

         22  here and they pay their profits there.  So who the

         23  heck are we protecting?  And why are we protecting

         24  whom?

         25                 The LPC --  and I'm going to be very
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          2  crass.  I apologize, Mr. Tierney, but come on.  It

          3  sits there at the function of the Mayor.  It doesn't

          4  sit there at any other function, and as the function

          5  of the Mayor he, or they, do a little, not a lot.

          6  We all know that a lot is a bad thing.  A lot means

          7  everything, and a little means nothing.  Somewhere

          8  in the middle is your job, and unfortunately, I

          9  didn't get it.  You did.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         11                 MR. SHEA: So it's your process, but

         12  you've got to go for transparency.  You've got to go

         13  for notice, and you're doing it.  You are a great

         14  first step.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you, and I

         16  have to ask you to wrap up just because we have to

         17  keep moving.

         18                 MR. SHEA: Thank you, thank you, thank

         19  you and thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         21                 MS. MANVILLE: Laura Manville.  I'm

         22  here from the American Institute of Architects New

         23  York Chapter, and I'm reading a letter from Joan

         24  Blumenfeld, our President and Fredric Bell, who is

         25  the Executive Director.
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          2                 Chair Lappin, we are testifying today

          3  on behalf of the New York Chapter of the American

          4  Institute of Architects and its more than 4,000

          5  architect and public members.  We applaud the aim of

          6  Intro 542 to improve communication between the

          7  Landmarks Preservation Commission and the Department

          8  of Buildings.  This improvement is sorely needed and

          9  long awaited by those of us who deal with both

         10  bodies on a professional basis.  To this end, the

         11  AIA is in full support of the portions of the bill

         12  that require the LPC to issue notice to the DOB when

         13  a property is under consideration for designation as

         14  a landmark, and those that require the DOB to tissue

         15  notice to the LPC when permit applications for

         16  buildings under consideration for designation as a

         17  landmark are received.  These provisions will help

         18  to protect historic buildings from modified or

         19  damaged in error or ignorance, and simplify

         20  interactions between building owners and the City.

         21                 We have already met with Council

         22  Member Mendez to discuss our serious reservations

         23  with the portion of the bill that calls for the

         24  revoking of permits previously issued by the

         25  Department of Buildings when a property is
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          2  designated as a landmark.  As design professionals,

          3  we know that by the time a building permit is

          4  issued, a large amount of work and resources have

          5  already been put into the project in order to

          6  prepare it for the construction phase.  Land and

          7  materials have been bought, legal fees paid, designs

          8  drawn up, and loans taken out.  In our estimation, a

          9  building permit is a contract, and must be always

         10  honored by the City, the authority that grants it,

         11  as long as its bearer has complied with his or her

         12  responsibilities.  Intro 542, as it now stands,

         13  would allow a hardship, in many cases severe, to be

         14  brought on the owner of a recently landmarked

         15  building through no fault of his or her own.  In

         16  fact, as it is written, the City itself is exempted

         17  from this provision, which speaks to the provision's

         18  undesirability.  The AIA cannot support any bill

         19  that includes this section.

         20                 That said, we do recognize that there

         21  is a serious problem with the pulling of permits for

         22  buildings on the cusp of landmarking.  This unsavory

         23  practice is common in all five boroughs, and has

         24  been personally witnessed by some of our members on

         25  the blocks where they live.  We believe that this
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          2  bill should and can address this problem without the

          3  wholesale permit revocation that is currently

          4  allowed by its language, and are in the process of

          5  compiling policy recommendations for Council Member

          6  Mendez and your Subcommittee.

          7                 We look forward to continuing the

          8  dialogue about these issues with the Council, and

          9  hope that this bill, for which there is a great

         10  need, can be modified to do the greatest good for

         11  the building industry and the historic buildings,

         12  present and future, of New York.

         13                 I just want to say that all of the

         14  points raised today, I've been here the whole time,

         15  are well taken.  So we look forward to speaking to

         16  Council Member Mendez again, and Chair Lappin, if

         17  you would like to speak to us as well.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Just so I'm

         19  clear, you say you're preparing policy

         20  recommendations.  Are those recommendations in

         21  relation to this bill?

         22                 MS. MANVILLE: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: As sort of a

         24  classification of permits?  Is that the concept?

         25                 MS. MANVILLE: Right.  Well just a
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          2  clarification of how to deal with the pulling of

          3  permits because we feel that right now the language

          4  is very general as has been raised in this hearing.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Well we look

          6  forward to your specific suggestions.

          7                 MS. KIERAS: I'm Joy Kieras, Friends

          8  of First Avenue Estate, and a resident of First

          9  Avenue Estate on 65th Street on the Upper East Side.

         10    It's a pleasure to be here today and to address

         11  you.  I thank you for your work on this very

         12  important bill.  We appreciate your help in the

         13  landmark amendment to the First Avenue Estate

         14  designation, which you considered this year.

         15                 Let me describe First Avenue Estate.

         16  It has 15 buildings, and covers an entire City

         17  block.  It was built by the City and Suburban Homes

         18  Company at the turn of the century as an experiment

         19  and demonstration in social housing providing

         20  housing for working people.  For the hundred years

         21  that that project has been built, it has continued

         22  to serve that, housing working people of New York

         23  City.  It is not a new issue, or of no interest to

         24  others.  The federal government had a large and

         25  detailed study of the City and Suburban Homes
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          2  Company in the 1930's and used it to discuss the

          3  issue of how to build social housing.

          4                 In the 1980's, Elizabeth and I, and

          5  others, helped to get this property, the First

          6  Avenue Estate, listed on the National Register of

          7  Historic Places with the approval of the owner at

          8  the time as was necessary.  When the Landmarks

          9  Commission first designated the entire block of City

         10  and Suburban Homes Company, the Board of Estimate

         11  subsequently removed the two buildings that were on

         12  York Avenue, and for 17 years, those buildings

         13  remained unprotected.  Through Council Member Lappin

         14  and others, this issue was brought again to the

         15  fore.  In 2004  --  Excuse me for the confusion

         16  there  --  the owner decided to take the step of

         17  applying for permits to alter the exterior of the

         18  building, and in a brilliant display of efficiency

         19  by the Department of Buildings received an approval

         20  for permits over a Labor Day weekend.  These

         21  buildings, these plans were self- certified, and

         22  they did not reflect the appearance of the building

         23  in 2004, in particular, the parapets of the building

         24  which were quite elaborate and were displayed on the

         25  drawings as not existing.  When Council Member
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          2  Lappin brought the issue up last year, the owner

          3  rushed to bill sheds and to begin the demolition of

          4  the parapets and to enrobe the building today in a

          5  pink stucco.

          6                 Okay.  So I'm sorry to review for you

          7  the situation with City and Suburban Homes Company

          8  First Avenue Estate, but it's a very large

          9  development, and an entirely integrated design and

         10  an entirely different project which contributed

         11  mightily to the housing development in New York City

         12  through its very innovative arrangements of lot line

         13  adjustments and so forth.

         14                 The legislation which you have

         15  proposed today, we support and believe will help

         16  increase the communication between the Department of

         17  Buildings and the Landmarks Preservation, and should

         18  lead to a greater transparency in the process.  As I

         19  mentioned to you, the Department of Buildings self-

         20  certified plans by the owner did not reflect the

         21  appearance of the building, and perhaps the website

         22  itself doesn't tell you that this was not the case.

         23  We hope that the bill that you are working on now

         24  will help to eliminate the apparent rush behind the

         25  scenes to have something approved.
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          2                 We'd like to talk a little bit about

          3  the permitting process which allows a permit to be

          4  grandfathered in, to be continued forever, to be

          5  held as a way of preventing any action by the LPC,

          6  less the owner act as permitted.  We support the

          7  idea that these should not.  We believe that this

          8  grandfathering should not be allowed, and that the

          9  permit should have a period of time before they must

         10  be resubmitted.

         11                 I think I've said everything about

         12  it.  I'd like to address the issue from the LPC

         13  commentator who mentioned that the historic

         14  districts are so very large, and the individual

         15  landmarks are so very small.  First Avenue Estate is

         16  large enough to be an historic district occupying,

         17  as it does, a full City block.  We don't believe

         18  that this is really such a serious problem, and we

         19  think that the brilliant minds at the LPC and

         20  Department of Buildings can grasp these in an

         21  orderly and in an efficient way. I think the issue

         22  is making the process simple, making it complete and

         23  making it open so that we can see what's happening

         24  and we don't have to live in fear.

         25                 I think that's everything I have to
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          2  say.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you, Joy.

          4                 MS. MCCRACKEN: I'm Elizabeth

          5  McCracken speaking on behalf of the Friends of First

          6  Avenue Estate.  I, first of all, would like to thank

          7  Ms. Mendez for proposing this legislation, and, of

          8  course, Ms. Lappin for her effort to have the City

          9  and Suburban buildings landmarked in entirety in the

         10  First Avenue Estate.  I have submitted written

         11  testimony which I will forego at that moment.  It

         12  was specific about the situation at City and

         13  Suburban, but apropos of the discussion, it was

         14  particularly interesting to hear the representative

         15  from the Landmarks Commission give his perspective

         16  and the others who have spoken as well.

         17                 I noted Mr. Bankoff of the Historic

         18  District Council talked about auditing the permits.

         19  If the permits that just simply get renewed and

         20  renewed at the Department of Buildings are looked at

         21  periodically, it would be helpful.

         22                 In the case of the permit for the

         23  City and Suburban buildings, the Landmark Commission

         24  itself would have recognized immediately that the

         25  drawings were inaccurate, and that the parapet which
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          2  was removed with such haste, and even with enough

          3  haste to expose asbestos to the community, that

          4  parapet was not shown in the drawings at all, but it

          5  was necessary to remove it so that the owner could

          6  make the point that these buildings did not look

          7  like the rest of the block, which is, of course,

          8  happening on the surface.  But the reality of the

          9  designation had to do with the value of these

         10  buildings and the history of housing and the

         11  contributions they've made to the City of New York.

         12                 Again, I want to thank the Council

         13  for considering this, and I wish you luck in

         14  figuring out how to put it all together now that

         15  you've heard all these comments.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I want to thank

         17  you for testifying.  I want to thank everybody who

         18  came here to testify. I think it's appropriate to

         19  end on this note because I think the whole point of

         20  this legislation is to prevent what happened at City

         21  and Suburban and Charras and Dakota Stables from

         22  happening again.

         23                 Unfortunately, every time I drive up

         24  First Avenue, and I look to my left and I see the

         25  ugly pick stucco, it's a reminder of a system that
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          2  isn't working properly, and so our job is to take

          3  all of these comments that we've heard today and

          4  synthesize them and keep working on this issue.

          5                 With that, I'm going to close this

          6  hearing.  Thank you very much, and this meeting is

          7  adjourned.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 1:40 p.m.)
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